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Gentlemen:

SPECIAL PROJECTS -
Antonio A. Merelos
Angelita D. De Guzman
Maximilian Chua

Our client, GMA Holdings, Inc. (the “Corporation”) filed its
Preliminary Information Statement (SEC Form 20-IS) on April 21,
2016. In your letter dated April 22, 2016, which we received on
April 26, 2016, you directed our client to amend the same in
accordance with the remarks in your checklist attached to the letter.

*On Leave

In compliance thereof, we have incorporated the following:

Undertaking to make the Company’s First Quarter
Report for the period ended March 31, 2016 available to
the Company’s stockholders at least five (5) calendar
days before the Annual Meeting (kindly see undertaking
to submit the same on page 19 of the Information
Statement) and

1

of Management’s Responsibility signed under
oath by the following: Chairman of the Board, Chief
Executive Officer, pursuant to Bulletin No. 001 dated
February 16, 2012, SRC Rule 68, as amended (kindly see
cover page of the Audited Financial Statements)

(2) Statement




With this, the undersigned respectfully request the Honorable
Commission to approve its Definitive Information Statement so the
Company may distribute the same to its stockholders.

Thank you very much.

Very truly yours,

BELO GOZON ELMA
PAREL ASUNCION & LUCILA

By:
ROBERTO O. PAREL

. L

ARIA ESTELITA B. ARLES-GOZON
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April 27, 2016
NOTICE TO STOCKHOLDERS:

Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr.
Felipe L. Gozon

Joel Marcelo G. Jimenhez
Jaime C. Laya - ,
Artemio V. Panganiban
Manuel P. Quiogue
Felipe S. Yalong

Dear Stockholder:

Please be informed that the Annual Meeting of the Stockholders of GMA Holdings, Inc. will be
held on May 27, 2016 {Friday) at 10:00 a.m. at Balducci Ristorante & Deli, Serendra, Bonifacio
High Street, Fort Bonifacio, Taguig, City to consider, discuss or vote on the following

Call to order. ]

Certification and Notice of Quorum

Approval of the Minutes of the Stockholders Meeting held on August 13, 2015
Report of the President '

Ratification of Acts of the Board of Directors for the previous year

Election of Directors, including the Independent Directors

Election of the External Auditor

Consideration of such other business as may properly come before the meeting
Adjournment - :

CoOND GRS

Any stockholder may vote by proxy provided that such authorization remains unrevoked and on
file with, or is submitted to, the undersigned at the 15/F Sagittarius Building, H.V. De la Costa
Street, Salcedo Village, Makati City. ' '

For purposes of the meeting, only stockholders of record as of April 27, 2016 shail be entitied to
vote. '

The Organizational Meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held immediately after the Annual
Stockholders’ Meeting.

Thank you,

For the Board of Directors:

” ANNA-TERESA M. GOZOI@R?GAR

Corporate Secretary



We are not soliciting your proxy. However, if you are unable to attend the meeting but would
like to be represented thereat, you may accomplish the proxy form herein provided below and
submit the same to the Office of the Corporate Secretary on or hefore May 25, 2016. You may
deliver the proxy or send it in advance through fax no. (632) 812-0008. Validation of proxies
shall be held on May 26, 2016 at 10:00 a.m. at the GMA Network Center.

PROXY

I/We hereby name and appoint . or in his/her absence, the Chairman
of the meeting, as my/our proxy at the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting of GMA Holdings, Inc. to
be held at Balducci, G/F Serendra, Bonifacio Global City, Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City on
Friday, May 27, 2016 at 10:00 a.m. and at any postponement or adjournment thereof.

Name

Signature

Date

No. of Shares Held
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Name of Registrant as specified in its charter: GMA HOLD!NGS, INC.

Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organiza‘tion: PHILIPPINES
SEC Idehtification Number C8200602356

BIR Tax Identification Code 244-658-896-000

Address of principal office Postal Code

UNIT 5D TOWER ONE, ONE MCKINLEY PLACE, NEW BONIFACIO GLOBAL. CITY,
FORT BONIFACIO, TAGUIG CITY

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code (632) 9827777

Date, time and place of the meeting of security hoiders

DATE : May 27, 2016

TIME : 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: Balducci, G/F Serendra, Bonifacio Globkal City, Fort Bonifacio,
Taguig City

Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to
security holders

May 3, 2015

In case of Proxy Solicitations:

Name of Person Filing the Statement/Solicitor: NOT APPLICABLE
Address and Telephone No.: NOT APPLICABLE
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11. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code or Sections 4 and 8 of
the RSA (information on number of shares and amount of debt is applicable only to

corporate registrants):

Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Common Stock
Outstanding and Amount of Debt
Qutstanding

Philippine Depositary Receipts (“PDRs”) 846,038,700

12. Are any or all of registrant's securities listed in a Stock Exchange?

PDRs/PHILIPPINE STOCK EXCHANGE

GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

This Information Statement dated May 3, 2016, is being furnished to the stockholders of record
tion with the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.

of GMA Holdings, Inc. as of April 27, 2016 in connec

G YOU FOR A PROXY AND YOU ARE

WE ARE NOT ASKIN
NOT TO SEND US A PROXY.

REQUESTED

A. GENERAL INFORMATION

ltem 1. Date, time and place of meeting of security holders.

(a) State the date, time and place of the meeting

Date May 27, 2016
Time 10:00 a.m.
Place: Balducci, G/F Serendra, Bonifacio Global City, Fort Bonifacio,
Taguig City
(b) Approximate date on which copies of the information statement are first to be sent to the
security holders:

May 3, 2016



ltem 2. Dissenters’ Right of Appraisal

Title X of the Corporation Code of the Philippines grants to a shareholder the right to dissent
and demand payment of the fair value of his share in certain instances, to wit: (1) in case any
amendment to the corporation’s articles of incorporation has the effect of changing and
restricting the rights of any shareholder or class of shares, or of authorizing preferences in any
respect superior to those of outstanding shares of any class; (2) in case of any sale, lease,
exchange, transfer, mortgage or other disposition of all or substantially all of the corporate
property or assets; (3) in case of merger or consolidation; (4) in case the corporation decides to
invest its funds in another corporation or business of for any purpose other than the primary
purpose; and (5) extension or shortening of the term of corporate existence.

Under Section 42 of the Corporation Code, a stockholder is likewise given an appraisal right in
cases where a corporation decides to invest its funds in another corporation or business. The
appraisal right may be exercised by a stockholder who shall have voted against any of the
foregoing corporate actions proposed in a meeting by making written demand on the
corporation for the payment of the fair value of hisfits shares within 30 days after the date on
which the vote is taken. Failure to make written demand within such period shall be deemed a
waiver of such right. If the proposed action is implemented, the corporation shail pay to a
stockholder surrendering his/its stock certificates the fair value of such shares as of the day
prior to the date on which the vote was taken; however, no payment shall be made to any
stockholder unless the corporation has unrestricted retained earnings in its books to cover such
payment. Within ten days after demanding payment for his shares, a dissenting stockholder
shall submit his stock certificates for notation thereon that such shares are dissenting-shares,
failing which, his/its appraisal right shall, at the option of the corporation,’ terminate. Upon
payment of the purchase price for the shares, the stockholder must transfer his shares to the

corporation.

Erom the time a demand for payment of fair value until either the abandonment of the corporate
action involved or the purchase of said shares by the corporation, all rights accruing fo such
shares, including voting and dividend rights, shall be suspended. If the dissenting stockholder is
not paid the value of the shares within 30 days after the award, his voting and dividend rights

shall be restored.

None of the proposed corporate actions qualifies as an instance for a possible exercise by
security holders of their appraisal rights under Tittle X of the Corporation Code of the

Philippines.
ltem 3. Interest of Certain Persons in or Opposition to Matters to be Acted Upon

(a) There is no matter to ‘be acted upon in which any Director or Executive Officer is
involved or had a direct, indirect or substantial interest.

(b) No Director has informed the Company of his opposition to any matter to be acted upon.



B. CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

Securities and Principal Holders Thereof

(a) GMA Holdings, Inc. (“the Company") has 10,000 common shares subscribed and
outstanding as of March 30, 2016. Every stockholder shall be entitled to one vote for -
each common share held as of the established record date.

(b) Al stockholders of record as of the closing of husiness on April 27, 2016 are entitied to
notice of and to vote at the Company’s Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.

(c) With respect to the election of directors, a stockholder may vote such number of shares
for as many persons as there are directors to be elected or he may accumulate said
shares and give one candidate as many votes as the number of directors to be elected
or he may distribute them on the same principle among as many candidates as he shall
see fit; provided, that the total number of votes cast by him shall not exceed the total
number of shares owned by him multiplied by the whole number of directors to be

elected.

(d) The following are the information on security ownership of certain record and beneficial
owners and management: ‘

Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners as of March 30, 2016

As of March 30, 2016, the following persons owned at least 5% of the Company’s outstanding
common shares:

Title of Name, Address of Name of Beneficial Citizenship | No. of Percent-
class Record Owner and Owner and ' Shares age of
Relationship with Relationship with Held Class
Company Record Owner
Common | Felipe L. Gozon The Record owner is Filipino 3,330 33.30

Unit 5 5D Tower One, One the Beneficial Owner
McKinley Place, New
Bonifacio City, :
Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City _
Gommon | Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. The Record owner is Fitipino 3,330 33.30
Unit 5 5D Tower One, One the Beneficial Owner
McKinley Place, New
Bonifacio City,

' Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City
Common | Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez The Record owner is | - Filipino 3,330 33.30
unit 5 5D Tower One, One the Beneficial Owner
McKinley Place, New
Bonifacio City,

Fort Bonifacio, Tagufg City ‘
| Total | 9,990 99.90 |

Felipe L. Gozon, Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. and Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez aré significant
stockholders of the Company.



Security Ownership of Managemént as of March 30, 2016:

As of March 30, 2016, the Company’s directors and senior officers owned an aggregate of
96,996 common shares of the Company, equivalent to 00.96% of the Company’s issued and
outstanding common capital stock.

Title of Name of Amount and | Citizenship PercentageT
Class ' Beneficial Owner Nature of of Class
| Beneficial :
‘ Ownership
Common Felipe L. Gozon Direct Filipino 33.30
_ 3,330
Common Gilberto R, Duavit, Jr. Direct Filipino 33.30 |
3,330
Common Joe! Marcelo G. Jimenez Direct Filipino 33.30
_ 3,330 '
Commion Artemio V. Panganiban Direct Filipina - .04
| 4
Common Jaime C. Laya Direct Filipino 01
1 .
Common Felipe S. Yalong Direct Filipino .01
1
Total 09,996 99.96

Voting Trust Holders of more than 5%

The Company is not aware of any person holding more than 5% of shares under a voting trust
or similar arrangement.

Changes in Control

The Company is not aware of any arrangement which may have resulted in a change in control
of the Company during the period covered by this report.

Foreign Equity

The Company’s equity (consisting of common shares) are wholiy-owned by Filipinos. While the
PDRs issued by the Gompany may be owned by any person regardless of citizenship or
nationality, the exercise of which is subject to the nationality restriction under the Philippine
Constitution prohibiting foreign ownership in mass media companies. As a result, the
Underlying Shares (GMA Network, Inc. common shares) resulting from an exercise of the
_ PDRs may only be issued t0 Philippine citizens or corporations, cooperatives or associations
wholly owned and managed by Philippine citizens. Although holders of PDRs will enjoy
economic rights upon occurrence of certain events in respect of the Underlying Shares, they
will not have any voting rights in respect of the Underlying Shares. Such voting rights will, until
exercise of the PDR, be retained and exercised by GHI or the Company. Pending exercise of
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the PDRs, the Shares deliverable on exercise of the PDRs shall be owned by and registered in
the name of the Issuer. The Shares underlying the PDRs have been delivered and pledged by
the lssuer to the Pledge Trustee, and held to the order and for the benefit of the Holders as
security for the delivery of the Shares upon exercise of the PDRs pursuant to the Pledge. Until
an exercise of a PDR, the Issuer, as owner of Shares underlying the relevant PDR, will retain
and exercise such voting rights relating to such Shares.

Item 5. Directors and Executive Officers

Nominees for Election as Members of the Board of Directors

The following were nominated as members of the Board of Directors for the ensuing year
(2016-2017).

Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr.

Felipe L. Gozon

Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez

Jaime C. Laya (Independent Director)

Artemio V. Panganiban (Independent Director)

All the nominees are incumbent directors. The nominees were formally nominated by Gilberto
R. Duavit, Jr. Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. has no relationship with the nominated independent

directors, Jaime C. Laya and Artemio V. Panganiban.

The Company's By-laws provide that all nominations to the Board of Directors shail be
submitted in writing to the Nomination Committee before the date of the regular annual meeting
of the stockholders. The Nomination Committee has reviewed the qualifications of the

nominees and approved the final list of candidates.

The members of the Nomination Co‘mmittee are as follows:
Felipe L. Gozon (Chairman)
Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr.

Joel Marceioc G. Jimenez
Jaime C. Laya

Board of Directors, Officers and Senior Management

Under the Articles of Incorporation of the Company, the Board of Directors of the Company
comprises five directors, two of whom are independent. The directors have a term of one year
and are elected annually at the Company’s stockholders meeting. A director who is elected to
fill a vacancy holds the office only for the unexpired term of his predecessor. As of March 30,
2016, the Company’s Board of Directors and Senior Management were composed of the

following:



Board of Directors Senior Management
Year Year
Directors and Senlor . . Position ' . Position
Management Nationality Position was Position was Age
Assumed Assumed
) - Chairman/ :
Felipe L. Gozon Fillpino | pirector 2007 N/A N/A 76
Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. Filiping | Director 2007 President/Chief Executive Officer 2007 52
Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez Filipino Director 2007 N/A N/A 812
Chief Financial Officer/Chief
Felipe S. Yalong Filipino - | Corporate Treasurer 2007 Operating Officer 2012 58
Artemio V. Panganiban Filipine | tndependent Director 2009 N/A NFA 79
Jaime C. Laya Filipino | Independent Direcior 2008 N/A . N/A 77
Ronaldo P. Mastrli Filipine | NiA A | Comptrolier/Chief Accounting 2007 | 50
Officer
Arha Teresa M. Gozon- .
Abrogar Filipino |- Corporate Secretary 2007 N!A N/A 44
Roberto O. Parel Filipino | N/A N/A ‘gf‘;fcgres'de“”COmp“a”"e 2013 | 80

The following are descriptions of the business experience of each of the Company’s directors,
officers and senior management: :

Felipe L. Gozon, Filipino, 76 yéars old, is the Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief
Executive Officer of GMA Network, Inc.

Atty. Gozon is a Senior Partner at the Law Firm of Belo Gozon Elma Parel Asuncion & Lucila.

Aside from GMA Network, Inc., he is also Chairman and CEO of GMA Marketing and
Productions, Inc. and GMA New Media, Inc.; Chairman and President of FLG Management and
Development Corp.; Chairman of Alta Productions Group, Inc., Citynet Network Marketing and
Productions, Inc., Mont-Aire Realty and Development Corp., Philippine Entertainment Portal,
Inc., and RGMA Network, Inc.; Vice Chairman of Malayan Savings and Mortgage Bank;
Director of, among other companies, Gozon Development Carp., Justita Realty and
Management Corp., Antipolo’ Agri-Business and Land Development Corp., Capitalex Holdings,
Inc., BGE Holdings, Inc., Philippine Chamber of Commerce and Industry, Chamber of
Commerce of the Philippine islands and President of Lex Realty, Inc. He serves as Chairman
of the Board of Trustees of GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc., Kapwa Ko Mahal Ko Foundation,
Inc., and The Potter and Clay Christian School Foundation, Inc.; Chairman and President of
Gozon Foundation; and Trustee of Bantayog ng mga Bayani Foundation. Gozon is also an
Advisory Board Member of the Asian Television Awards.

Atty. Gozon is a recipient of several awards for his achievement in law, media, public service,
and business, including the prestigious Chief Justice Special Award given by the Chief Justice
of the Philippines (1991), Presidential Award of Merit given by the Philippine Bar Association
(1990 & 1993), CEO of the Year given by Uno Magazine (2004), Master Entrepreneur —
Philippines (2004) by Ernst and Young, Outstanding Citizen of Malabon Award for Legal and
Business Management by the Kalipunan ng Samahan sa Malabon (KASAMA) (2005), People of
the Year by People Asia Magazine (2005), Outstanding Manilan Award in the field of Social
Responsibility and Broadcasting given by the City Government of Manila (2011), Quezon City

Gawad Parangal Most Outstanding Citizen for 2011 given by the City Government of Quezon
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(2011), Tycoon of the Decade Award given by BizNews Asia (2011), .Lifetime Achievement
Award given by the UP Alumni Association (2012), Certificate of Recognition given by the Civil
Aeronautics Board (2012}, Personality of the Year for Broadcast Media given by SKAL
International Makati (2013), Outstanding Member-Achiever given by Phi Kappa Phi UF Chapter
(International Honor Society) (2013), Visionary Management CEO Award given by BizNews
Asia (2013), Lifetime Achievement Award given by UP Preparatory High School Alumni (2014),
Entrepreneurship Excellence Award and Best Broadcast CEO Award given by BizNews Asia
(2014), The Rotary Golden Wheel Award for Corporate Media Management given by Rofary
International District 3780 and Quezon City Government (2014), and Global Leadership Award
for Excellence in Media Sector (first Filipino to win the award) given by The Leaders
International together with the American Leadership Development Association in Kuala L.umpur,
Malaysia (2016). He is also listed among Biz News Asia’s Power 100 (2003 to 2010).

Atty. Gozon earned his Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of the Philippines (among'
* the first 10 of his class) and his Master of Laws degree from Yale University Law School. He
was admitted to the Bar in 1962, placing 13th in'the Bar examinations.

Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr., Filipino, 52 years old, is the President and Chief Operating Officer of
GMA Network, Inc. He has been a Director of the Company since 1999 and is currently the
Chairman of the Network's Executive Committes. Aside from GMA Network, Inc., he is fhe
Chairman of the Board of GMA Network Films, inc. and GMA Worldwide, Inc. and a Board
member and the Executive Committee Chairman of GMA Marketing and Productions, Inc. He
also serves as President and CEO of GMA Holdings, Inc., RGMA Marketing and Productions,
Inc., Film Experts, Inc., and Dual Management and Investments, Inc. Heis the President and a
Director of Group Management and Development, Inc.; President and Director of MediaMerge
Corp., Citynet Network Marketing and Productions, Inc.; Director of RGMA Network, Inc., GMA
New Media, Inc., Alta Productions Group, Inc., Optima Digital, Inc., and Mont-Aire Realty and
Development Corp. He also serves as the President and a Trustee of GMA Kapuso Foundation,
inc. and a Trustee of the Guronasyon Foundation, Inc. and the HERO Foundation.

Mr. Duavit holds a Bachelor's Degree in Philosophy from the University of the Philippines.

Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez, Filipino, 52 years old, has been a Director of GMA Network, Inc.
since 2002. He is currently the President and CEQ of Menarco Holdings and the Chief
Executive Officer of Alta Productions, Inc. He is a Director of RGMA Network, Inc., GMA New
Media, Inc., Scenarios, Inc., and GMA Worldwide, Inc., besides also being a member of the
Board of Directors of Malayan Savings and Mortgage Bank, and Unicapital Securities, Inc. He
is also a Director of Nuvoland Philippines, & real-estate development company. He is a Trustee

of GMA Kapuso Foundation, inc.

He was educated in Los Angeiés, California where he obtained a Bachelor's Degree in
Business Administration from Loyola Marymount University. He also obtained a Master's
Degree in Management from the Asian Institute of !Vi_anagement.

Felipe S. Yalong, Filipino, 59 years old, is the Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer of GMA Network, Inc. He is also the Head of the Corporate Services Group of the
Network. He has been a Director of the Network since 2002. Aside from GMA Network, Inc., he
also serves as Corporate Treasurer of GMA Holdings, Inc., Scenarios, Inc., and GMA Network
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Films, Inc.; Director of Unicapital, Inc., Majalco Finance and Investments, Inc., and GMA
Marketing and Productions, Inc.; Corporate Treasurer of RGMA Network, Inc., MediaMerge
Corp.; Executive Vice President of RGMA Marketing and Productions, Inc.; and Corporate
Treasurer of the Board of Trustees of GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc.

Yalong was named CFO of the Year by ING FINEX Vin 2013.

He obtained a Bachelor of Science Degree in Business Administration Major in Accounting from
the Philippine School of Business Administration and completed the Management Development
Program at the Asian Institute of Management. He is a Certified Public Accountant.

Dr. Jaime C. Laya, Filipino, 77 years old, has been an independent Director of GMA Network,
Inc. since 2007. He is the Chairman and President of Philippine Trust Gompany (Philtrust
Bank), Director of Ayala Land, inc., Manila Water Company, inc., and Philippine AXA Life
Insurance Company, Inc. He also serves as Chairman of Don Norberto Ty Foundation, Inc.
and Escuela Taller de Filipinas Foundation, Inc.; Trustee of St. Paul University - Quezon City,
Cultural Center of the Philippines, Metropolitan Museum of Manila, Yuchengco Museum,
Fundacion Santiago, Inc., Ayala Foundation, Inc., and other foundations. He writes a weekly

column for the Manila Bulletin.

e was Minister of Budget, 1975-1981; Minister of Education, Culture and Sports, 1984-86;
Chairman of the Monetary Board and Governor, Central Bank of the Philippines, 1981-1984;
Chairman, National Commission for Culture and the Arts, 1996-2001. He was faculty member
of the University of the Philippines, 1957-1978 and Dean of the College of Business
Administration, 1969-1974. in 1986, he founded J.C. Laya & Co., Ltd. (Certified Public
Accountants and Management Consultants) later the Philippine member firm of KPMG
_International; he served as the firm's Chairman until  his retirement in 2004.

He eamned his BSBA, magna cum jaude, University of the Phiiippihes, 1957; M.S. in Industrial
Management, Georgia Institute of Technology, 1960; Ph.D. in Financial Management, Stanford
University, 1966. He is a Certified Public Accountant.

Chief Justice Artemio V. Panganiban, Filipino, 79 years old, has been an Independent
Director of GMA Network, Inc. since 2007. in 1995, he was named a Justice of the Supreme
Court and in 2005, he was appointed Chief Justice of the Philippines — & position he held until
December 2006. At present, he is also an Independent Director of these listed firms: First
Philippine Holdings Corp., Metro Pacific Investments Corp., Manila Electric Company,
Robinsons Land Corp., GMA Holdings, Inc., Philippine. Long Distance Telephone Co., Petron
Corporation, Bank of the Philippine lslands, Asian Terminals, and a regular Director of Jollibee
Foods Corporation. He is also a Senior Adviser of Metropolitan Bank, Chairman, Board of
Advisers of Metrobank Foundation, Adviser of Double Dragon Properties, Chairman of the
Board of the Foundation for Liberty and Prosperity, president of the Manila Cathedral Basilica
Foundation, Chairman Emeritus of Philippine Dispute Resolution Center, Inc., and Member,
Advisory Board of the World Bank (Philippines) and of the Asian Institute of Management
Corporate Governance Council. He also is & column writer of The Philippine Daily Inquirer.

tirement, he was unanimously conferred a Plague of Acclamation by the Associate

Upon his re
“Renaissance Jurist of the 21st Century;” and an Award

Justices of the Supreme Court as the
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of Honor by the Philippine Bar Association. In recognition of his role as a jurist, lawyer, civic
‘leader, Catholic lay worker, business entrepreneur and youth leader, he had been the recipient
of over 250 other awards from various governments, civic clubs, consumer associations, bar

groups, religious movements and other non-government organizations, both local and
international.

He obtained his Associate in Arts, “With Highest Honors” and later his Bachelor of Laws, with
cum laude and “Most Outstanding Student” honors from the Far Eastern University. He placed
sixth among more than 4,200 candidates who took the 1960 Bar examinations. He is likewise
the recipient of several honorary doctoral degrees from various universities.

Anna Teresa G. Abrogar, Filipino, 44 years old, has been a Director of GMA Network, Inc.
since 2000. She graduated valedictorian from grade school and high school at Colegio San
Agustin. She graduated cum laude, BS Management Engineering from Ateneo de Manila
University and obtained her Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of the Philippines
where she graduated valedictorian, cum laude. She later obtained her Master of Laws from

Harvard University.

She is a junior pariner i Belo Gozon Elma Parel Asuncion & Lucila and was an Associate
Professor in the University of the Philippines, College of Law where she taught taxation.

She is currently Programming Consultant to the Chairman/CEO of GMA Network, inc. and the
President of GMA Films, inc. and GMA Worldwide, inc. She is a trustee of GMA Kapuso

Foundation.

Ronaldo P. Mastrili, Filipino, 50 years old, is the Senior Vice President of GMA Network, Inc.’s
Finance and ICT Departments. He obtained his Bachelor of Science in Business and
Economics degree, major in Accounting from De La Salle University. He attended the Master in
Business Administration Program from the same university and completed the Executive
Development Program of the Asian Institute of Management. He is @ Certified Public
Accountant with expertise in the fields of accounting, auditing, finance, taxation and general
management. He was formerly the Assistant Vice President of Controliership of ABS-CBN and
also served as its Group Internal Auditor before joining GMA Network in March 2001. He also
worked with SGV and Co. in the early part of his career. Mr. Mastrili concurrently holds key
positions in GMA Subsidiaries namely: Comptroller/Chief Accounting Officer of GMA Holdings,
Treasurer of Alta Productions, Director of Script2010 and GMA Kapuso Foundation, and
Comptroller of GMA Fiims, GMA Kapuso Foundation and GMA Worldwide.

Roberto O. Parel, Filipino, 60 years old, has been the Corporate Secretary of the GMA
Network, Inc. since 1993. He has been the Compliance Officer of the Company since 2012. He
is a Partner at the Law Firm of Belo Gozon Elma Parel Asuncion & Lucila. His practice areas
include labor relations, natural resources and intellectual property. He is a Director of Time-Life
International Philippines, Berong Nickel Corporation, Ulugan Nickel Corporation, Ulugan
Resources Holdings, inc., Nickeline Resources Holdings, Inc., TMM Management Inc. and
Assetlex Development Company, inc.. Corporate Secretary of Alta Productions Group, Inc.,
Scenarios, Inc., Citynet Network Marketing and Productions, Inc. and GMA Kapuso Foundation,

Inc.
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He graduated from the University of the Philippines with a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Philosophy and a Bachelor of Laws degree. He was admitted to the Philippine Bar in 1981. Atty.
Parel further pursued legal studies through short programs at the Center of American and
International Law and the Southwestern Legal Foundation in Dallas, Texas. Later, he attended
a training program on Industrial Property Rights held by the Japan Institute of Invention and
Innovation and the Association for Overseas Technical Scholarship in Tokyo, Japan.

Significant Employees

Although the Company will continue 1o rely on the individual and collective contributions of their
executive officers, the Company is not dependent on the services of any particular employese.

Family Relationships

Anna Teresa M. Gozon-Abrogar is the daughter of Felipe L. Gozon. Felipe L. Gozon's sister,
Carolina L. Gozon Jimenez, is the mother of Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez.

Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

To the best of the Company’s knowledge, during the past five years and up to the date of this
information Statement, there has been no occurrence of any of the following events which are
material to an evaluation of the ability or integrity of any director, person nominated to become
a director, executive officer, or control person of the Company:

« Any filing of an insolvency or bankruptcy petition by or against any business of which
such person was a general partner or executive officer, either at the time of the -

insolvency or within two years prior to that time;

« Any conviction by final judgment in a criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, or any
pending criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, of any such person, excluding traffic

violations and other minor offenses;

e Any final and executory order, judgment, or decree of any court of competent
jurisdiction, domestic or foreign, against any such person, permanently or temporarily
enjoining, barring, suspending, or otherwise limiting involvement in any type of business,
securities, commodities, of banking activities; and

s Any final and executory judgment of any such person by a domestic or foreign court of
competent jurisdiction (in a civil action), the SEC, or comparable foreign body, or a
domestic or foreign exchange or electronic marketplace or self-regulatory organization,

for violation of a securities or commodities law.

Resignation of Directors :
No direcior has resigned or declined to stand for re-election to the Board of Directors since the

date of the initial organization of the Company because of a disagreement with the Company on
matters relating to the Company's operations, policies and practices.
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Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

On May 30, 2008, the Company engaged as its legal counsel Belo Gozon Elma Parel Asuncion
& Lucila (“BGEPAL") where Atty. Felipe L. Gozon is a Senior Partner. Atty. Gozon is the
Chairman and one of the major stockholders of the Company. The Company and BGEPAL are
currently negotiating the fees in relation to the services provided, ensuring that the same is

done on an arm’s length basis.

On July 30, 2007, the Company issued PDRs relating to GMA Network, Inc. Common Shares,
The proceeds owing to the selling shareholders of GMA Network, Inc. (“Selling Shareholders”)
whose Common Shares formed the underlying shares of the PDRs in the Company's initial
Public Offering were initially held by the Company then remitted to these Selling Shareholders.

Please see Note 10 of the Company's Financial Statements.

Other than the foregoing, the Company has had no material transactions during the past two
years, nor is any material transaction presently proposed between the Company and parties
that fall outside the definition of “related parties” under SFAS/IAS No. 24, but with whom the
registrants or its related parties have a relationship that enables the parties to negotiate terms
of material transactions that may not be availed from other, more clearly independent parties on

an arm’s length basis.

ltem 6. Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers

Compensation of Directors and E_xecutive Officers

The following sets forth the summary of the Company’s compensation toits executive officers:

Name and Position

Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. President and Chief Executive Officer
Felipe S. Yalong Chief Financial Officer/ Chief Operating Officer
Ronaldo P. Mastrili Chief Accounting Officer/ Com ptrolier
Year Salaries Bonuses Other Total
(in (in Income (in
t_housands) thousands) thousands)
CEO and the highest
compensated officers named 2013 - - - -
above
2014 - - - -
2015 - - - -
2016 - - - -
(estimate)

Aggregate compensation paid to
all officers and directors as a 2013 - -

group unnamed

2014 : - -
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2015 - - - -
2016
(estimate)

No director or officer receives or has received compensation for their services. The By-Laws of
the Company however, provides that each director is entitled to a reasonable per diem
allowance for attendance at each meeting of the Board of Directors. The By-Laws further
provide that the Board may receive and allocate an amount of not more than 10% of the net
income before income tax of the corporation during the preceding year. Such compensation
shall be determined and apportioned among the directors in such manner as the Board may
deem proper, subject to the approval of the stockholders representing at least a majority of the

stockholders.

The Company has no other arrangement with regard to the remuneration of its existing

directors and officers aside from the compensation received as herein stated.

Employment Contracts, Termination of Employment, Change-in-control Arrangements

The directors and executive officers do not have any employment contracts, and are elected to
their respective positions on a yearly basis. The Company has no compensatory plans or
arrangements with respect to any executive officer that would result from the resignation,
retirement or any other termination of such executive officer's employment.

ltem 7. Independent Public Accountants

(a) SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co. (“SGV & Co.") has acted as the Company's external
auditors since 2007. SGV & Co. is being recommended for re-election at the scheduled

Annual Stockholders’ Meeting on May 27, 2016.

(b) Representatives of SGV & Co. for the current year and for the most recently completed
fiscal year are expected to be present at the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting. They will
have the opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do so and are expected to be

available to respond to appropriate questions.

The Company became publicly listed with the Philippine Stock Exchange on July 30,
2007. Pursuant to Rule 68 paragraph 3 (b) (iv), the Company has engaged Ms. Marydith
C. Miguel, partner of SGVY & Co., to sign the Company’s 2015 audited financial

statements.

(c) Changes in and disagreements with accouhtan-ts on accounting and financial disclosure.

The Company has not had any disagreements on account'ing and financial disclosures
with its current external auditors during the two most recent fiscal years or any

subsequent interim period.

(d) SGV & Co. professional fees billed for its year-end financial audit of the Company
covering the years 2015, 2014 and 2013 amounted to P73 thousand per year. These
included the fees related to financial audit and services for general tax compliance. No

other fees of any nature were paid.
15



(e) The Company’s Audit Committee was formed in 2008. The Audit Committee reviews‘ the
foe arrangements with the external auditor and recommends the same to the Board of

Directors.

The members of the Audit Committee are as follows:

Dr. Jaime C. Laya (Chairman)

Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr.

Chief Justice Artemio V. Panganiban
Felipe S. Yalong (Corporate Treasurer}

ltem 8.Compensation Plans

No action shall be taken with respect to any plan pursuant to which cash or non-cash
compensation may be paid or distributed.

C. ISSUANCE AND EXCHANGE OF SECURITIES
ltem 9. Authorization or Issuance of Securities Other than for Exchange

No action shall be taken with respect to the authorization or issuance of any securities
otherwise than for exchange for outstanding securities of the Company.

Item 10. Modification or Exchange of Securities

No action shall be taken with respect to the modification of any class of securities of the
Company, or the issuance or authorization for issuance of one class of securities of the

Company in exchange for outstanding securities of another class.

ltem 11. Financiali and Other Information

in connection with ltem 11 hereof, the Company has incorporated by reference the following as
contained in the Management Report prepared in accordance with Rule 68 of the Securities

and Regulation Code:

o Audited Financial Statements for December 31, 2014 and 2015;
b. Managements Discussion and Analysis or plan of operation; and

c. Information on business overview, properties, legal proceedings, market price of
securities and dividends paid out, and corporate governance
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Item 12. Mergers, Consolidations, Acquisitions and Similar Matters

No action is to be taken with respect to the mergers, consolidations, acqﬁi‘sitions and simifar
matters.

Item 13. Acquisition or Disposition of Property

No action is to be taken with respect to the acquisition or disposition of any property.

ltem 14. Restatement of Accounts

No action is to be taken with respect to the restatement of any asset, capital or surplus account

of the Company.

D, OTHER MATTERS

item 15. Action with Respect to Reports

a. Approval of the Annual Report of Management and the Audited Financial
Statements for the year ending December 31, 2015.

b. Approval of the Minutes of the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting held on August 13,
2015. The salient matters are summarized as follows:

(1) Approval of the Minutes of the Stockholders’ Mesting held on May 30,

2015. o
(2) Report of the President
(3) Ratification of Acts of the Board of Directors for the Previous Year

(4) Election of Directors, including the Independent Directors
(6) Election of the External Auditor

- c. Ratification of Acts of the Board of Directors for the previous year

- All acts and resolutions of the Board of Directors and Management for the period
covering August 13, 2015 to May 27, 2016 adopted in the ordinary course of

business involving
> Approval of borrowings, opening of accounts and bank transactions;

> Appointment of signatories;
> Approval of the minutes of the organizational meeting last August 13,

2016 _
> Approval of the record date and venue of the Annual Stockhoiders’

Meeting
> Approval of the Financial Statements

Item 16. Matters Not Required to be Submitted

All actions or matters to be submitted in the meeting wil require the vote of the security holders.
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ttem 17. Amendment of Charter, Bylaws or Other Documents

No action is to be taken with respect to any amendment of the registrant's charter, by-laws or other
documents.

item 18. Other Proposed Action
(a) Ratification of the Acts of the Board of Directars/Corporate Officers:

() Declaration on April 8, 2016 by the Company of cash distribution to the
PDR holders of P0.40 per PDR or the same dividend rate that will be paid by
GMA Network, Inc. to its common shareholders, undiminished by the PDR
holders' proportionate share in the operating cost of GMA Holdings, Inc. The
foregoing cash distribution in the amount P0.40 per PDR shall be distributed 1o
PDR Holders as of April 25, 2016 and will be paid out to the PDR holders on May

17, 2016

(i) Declaration of Cash Dividends of P0.27 per share by GMA Network Inc.
on April 2, 2014 to PDR Holders. The record date for the PDR holders who were
entitied to receive the cash amounts was on April 24, 2014 (Thursday) [the same
record date for GMA Network, Inc. stockholders] and the cash amouris were
distributed to the PDR holders on May 20, 2014 (Tuesday).

(i) Al acts and resolutions of the Board of Directors and Management for
the period covering August 13, 2015 to May 27 2016 adopted in the ordinary

course of business involving
> Approval of borrowings, opening of accounts and bank transactions;

> Appointment of signatories;
> Approval of the minutes of the organizational meeting last August 13,

2015 _
> Approval of the record date and venue of the Annual Stockholders’

Meeting ‘ .
> Approval of the Financial Statements

(b) Election of the Members of the Board of Directors, including two independent
directors for the ensuing calendar year

(c) Election of the External Auditor

Jtem 19. Voting Procedures

(a) Vote Required: Motions, in general, require the affirmative vote of a majority of the shares
of the Company’s common stock present and/or represented and entitled to vote. However,
under Philippine law, certain proposed actions may require the vote of at least two thirds

(2/3) of the outstanding capital stock of the Company. The manner of voting is non-

cumulative, except as to the election of directors.
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(b) Method: Straight and cumulative voting. In the election of directors, the five (5) nominees
garnering the highest number of votes shall be elected directors. The stockholder may vote
such number of shares for as many person as there are directors to be elected, or he may
cumulate said shares and give one candidate as many votes as the number of directors to
be elected, or he may distribute them on the same principle among as marty candidates as
he shall see fit; provided, the total number of votes cast by him shali not exceed the number
of shares owned by him multiplied by the number of directors to be elected.

If there are more than five nominees, voting shall be done by secret ballot. If there are only
five nominees, voting shall be done by a show of hands.

The Corporate Secretary or the Secretary of the meeting shall be responsible for validating
the votes if the voting is done by secret ballot. The Corporate Secretary or the Secretary of
the meeting shall likewise be responsible if the voting is done by a show of hands.

Other than the nominees’ election as directors, no director, executive officer, nominee or
associate of the nominees has any substantial interest, direct or indirect by security holdings or -
otherwise in any way of the matters to be taken upon during the meeting. The Company has not
received any information that an officer, director or stockholder intends to oppose any action to

be taken at the Annual Stockholders' Meeting.

Upon written request of the stockholders, the Company undertakes to furnish said
stockholider with a copy of the SEC Form 17-A free of charge. Any written request for a
copy of the SEC Form 17-A shall be addressed to the following:

GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

9/F GMA NETWORK CENTER
EDSA corner Timog Avenue
Diliman, Quezon City

Attention: Ronaldo P. Mastrili
Chief Accounting Officer

Copies of the Unaudited Interim Financlal Statements (period ended March 31, 2016) will
be made available to each stockholder at least five (5) catendar days before the Annual
Meeting. Such report can be viewed at the GMA Network inc.’s official website and hard
copies of the company’s ifs and management discussion may be available upon request

five (5) calendar days before the said meeting.

19



SIGNATURE PAGE

After reasonable inquiry and to the best of my knowledge and belief, | certify that the
information set forth in this report is true, complete and correct. This report is signed in the

Ey)

City of Makati on APR 27 30ih 2016

GMA HOLDINGS, INC.
By: '

ANNA-TERESA M. GOZON ABROGAR
Corporate Secretary
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'MANAGEMENT’S REPORT

1. Business

GMA Hoidings, Inc., (the “Company” or “GHI") was incorporated on February 15, 2006. As a
holding Company, its primary purpose s to invest in, purchase, or otherwise acquire own, hold,
use, sell, assign, transfer, mortgage, pledge, exchange, or otherwise dispose of real and
personal property, including, but not limited to stocks, bonds and debentures. The Company

has no subsidiaries.

The Philippine Deposit Receipts (“PDRs”) issued by the Company were listed with the
Philippine Stock Exchange (“PSE”") on July 30, 2007.

GHI does not engage in any other business or purpose except in relation to the issuance of the
PDRs relating to the GMA Network, Inc. common shares (“Common Shares”) for as long as the
PDRs are outstanding. GHI has undertaken to perform the obligations under the PDRs and the
acquisition and holding of the Common Shares underlying the PDRs, which includes
maintaining the listing with the PSE, and maintaining its status as a Philippine person for as
long as Philippine law prohibits ownership of Common Shares by non-Philippine persons.

The registered office address of the Company is Unit 5D Tower One, One McKinley Place, New
Bonifacio Global City, Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City.

Transactions with/and or dependence on related parties:

Not applicable.

Employees

The Company had no fulltime employees as of March 30, 2016 and does not anticipate in
hiring any employees within the next 12 months. No labor unions are present within the

Company.
1. Properties

The Company does not own any real property. The Company does not lease any real property
and does not intend to acquire any within the next 12 months.

il. Legal Proceedings

The Company is not, and has not been, a party to any legal proceeding.

21



Iv.

Market Information

The CoMpany first offered PDRs
2007. These PDRs were listed on

Market for Issuer's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

relating to GMA Network, Inc. Common Shares on July 30,
the Philippine Stock Exchange on the same date.

2015 Stock Prices (GMAP)
Period in Highest Lowest
2015 Closing Closing
1Q 6.79 5.92
2Q 6.50 5.85
aQ 6.61 5.95
40 7.40 6.10

The Company’s Philippine Deposit Receipts have been listed with the Phiiippine Stock

Exchange since 2007. The price

date, April 20, 2016, is

Holders

information as of the close of the latest practicable trading

P6.88 for GMAP (PDRs).

The total number of shareholders as of March 30, 2016 was seven. The number of shares

subscribed as of March 30,
are listed hereunder:

Name of Shareholder
Felipe L. Gozon ‘
Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr.

Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez
Artemio V. Panganiban
Manuel P. Quiogue
Jaime C. Laya

Felipe S. Yalong

Total

Dividend Information

2016 was 10,000 or P100,000.00. All the

common shareholders of

No. of Shares Subscri

bed Percentage of Ownership
3,330 33.30
3,330 33.30
3,330 33.30
4 .04
4 .04
1 01
1 .01
10,000 100.00

Dividends shall be declared only from the surplus profits of the corporation and shall be payable

at such times and in such amoun
the Company,
declaration of stock dividends, however, is su

shares or property of
shall determine. The

ts as the Board of Directors shall determine, either in cash,
or a combination of the three, as said Board of Directors
bject to the approval of at

least two-thirds of the outstanding capital stock. No dividend which will impair the capital of the

Company shall be declared.
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Distribution of GMA Network, Inc. Cash Dividends to the Company's PDR Holders

On April 8, 2016, the Company approved a cash distribution to the PDR holders of P0.40 per
PDR or the same dividend rate that will be paid by GMA Network, Inc. to its common
shareholders, undiminished by the PDR holders’ proportionate share in the operating cost of
GMA Holdings, Inc. The foregoing cash distribution in the amount P0.40 per PDR shall be
distributed to PDR Holders as of April 25, 2016 and will be paid out to the PDR holders on May

17, 2016.

On March 30, 2015, the Combany 'approved a cash distribution to PDR holders of P0.25 per
share, in relation o dividends declared by GMA, totaling P211.75 million to all shareholders of
record as at April 24, 2015. These were remitted to PDR holders on May 19, 2015.

On April 2, 2014, the Company approved a cash distribution to PDR holders of P0.27 per share,
in relation to dividends declared by GMA, totaling P231.53 million to ail shareholders of record
as at April 24, 2014. These were remitted to PDR holders on May 20, 2014.

On April 24, 2013, the Company approved a cash distribution to PDR holders of P0.25 per
share, in refation to dividends dectared by GMA, to all stockholders of record as of April 17,
2013. These were remitted to F’DR‘hoiders on May 15, 2013.

Cash Dividends to Commori Shareholders

. On April 8, 2016, the BOD approved the Company’s declaration and distribution of Php 600
thousand dividends from the retained earnings of the corporation as of December 31, 2015 and
will be paid out to the Company’s common stockholders on May 17, 2016.

On March 30, 2015, the BOD approved the Company's declaration and distribution of Php 500
thousand from the retained earnings of the corporation as of December 31, 2015. This was paid
out to the Company's common stockholders on October 21, 2015.

The company has no dividend declaration in 2014 and 2013.

The Company has not and will not engage in any other business or purpose except in relation
to the issuance of the PDRs relating to the underlying Common Shares for as fong as the PDRs

are outstanding.

Any cash dividends distributed in respect of Common Shares underlying the PDRs received by
the Company shall be applied towards its operating expenses then due for the preceding and
current year. A further amount equal to the operating expenses in the preceding year shall be
set aside to meet operating or other expenses for the succeeding year. Amounts remaining in
excess of such requirements shall be distributed pro rata amongst the outstanding PDRs.

Whenever the Company shall receive or becoms entitled to receive from the GMA Network, Inc.
t of the Common Shares which consists of a free distribution of

any distribution in respec
Common Shares, the Company shall grant additional PDRs to holders in respect of such

distributions.

Whenever the Company shall receive or become entitied to receive from the GMA Network, Inc.
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any distribution in securities (other than Common Shares) or in other property {other than cash)
in respect of the Common Shares subject to the PDRs, the Company shall forthwith procure
delivery of such securities or other property pro rata to PDR holders or otherwise to the order of
the PDR holder, subject to compliance with applicable laws and regulations in the Philippines.

There are no restrictions on the Company’s ability to pay dividends on common equity.

Recent Sales of Unregistered or Exerhot Securities

No sale of unregistered or exempt securities of the Company has occurred within the past three
years, :

V. Management's Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Operation.

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements of the
Company that are incorporated into this information Statement by reference. Such Financial
Statements have been prepared in accordance with Philippine GAAP.

As discussed in the previous section, the Compény has not and will not engage in any other.
business or purpose except in relation to the issuance of the PDRs relating to the underlying
GMA Network, Inc. Common Shares for as long as the PDRs are outstanding.

Any cash dividends or other cash distributions distributed in respect of Common Shares
received by the Company (or the Pledge Trustee on its behalf) shall be applied toward the
operating expenses then due (including but not limited to applicable taxes, fees and
maintenance costs charged by the Philippine Stock Exchange) of the Company {the “Operating
Expenses”) for the current and preceding year (as certified by an independent auditor). A
further amount equal to the operating expenses in the preceding year (as’ certified by an
independent auditor) (the “Operating Fund”) shall be set aside to meet operating or other
expenses for the succeeding year. Any amount in excess of the aggregate of the Operating
Expenses paid and the Operating Fund for such period (as certified by the independent auditor
of the PDR Issuer) shall be distributed to Holders pro rata on the first Business Day after such

cash dividends are received by the Company.

On March 30, 2015, the Company approved a cash distribution to PDR holders of P0.25 per
share, in relation to dividends declared by GMA, totaling P211.75 million to all shareholders of
record as at April 24, 2015. These were remitted to PDR holders on May 19, 2015.

On April 2, 2014, the Company approved a ¢ash distribution to PDR holders of P0.27 per share,
in relation to dividends declared by GMA, totaling P231.53 million to all sharehoiders of record
as at April 24, 2014. These were remitted to PDR holders on May 20, 2014.

On April 24, 2013, the Company approved a cash distribution to PDR holders of P0.25 per
share, in relation to dividends declared by GMA, fo all stockholders of record as of April 17,

2013. These were remitted to PDR holders on May 15, 2013.
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KEY PERFORMANCE IN‘DICATORS

The Company’s key performance indicators are focused on the dividends it receives to meet
PDR holders’ expectations and monitor cash and cash equivalents levels to 'meet its obligations
with respect fo the Company's current and preceding year's operation.

Results of Operations of GMA Hb,ldins Inc. for the years ended December 31, 2015 and
2014

GMA Holdings Inc. ended the year with a pre-tax income of P1.05 million, an increase of P443
thousand from last year's pre-tax income of P07 thousand mainly due to higher revenues
despite higher operating expenses. Likewise, net income after tax amounted to P635 thousand
versus P350 thousand net income after tax in 2014. This year's revenues reached P2.14
million, an improvement of 30% or P490 thousand from last year's level of P1.65 million mainly
brought about by the climb in interest income of P2.05 million. For 2015, a totat of P2.00 million
PDR shares were converted to common shares which generated exercise fees of P89 thousand
vis-a-vis P9.16 million PDR shares in 2014, for an exercise fee of P409 thousand.

Operating expenses inched up by 5% to P1.09 million from P1.05 million in 2014 due to higher

professional fees partly negated by lower PSE listing fees and miscellanecus expenses.
Professional fees settled at P400 thousand, 95% more than the P205 thousand posted a year

ago which included payment to BGE for the amendment of Articles of Incorporation- (to

incorporate complete address). On the other hand, listing fees of P576 thousand dropped by

17% from P690 thousand in 2014 as an offshoot of lower market cap.

On April 8, 2016, the Board of Directors approved the Company's cash dividend declaration of

P600 thousand to its common stockholders from the retained eamings of the Company as of
December 31, 2015. g

Financial Condition. Total assets amounted to P48.52 million, 2 tad lower from last year's
P48.91 million primarily due to the decrease in the fair market value of Available-for-sale

investment {(under non-current asset).

KEY VARIABLE AND OTHER QUALITATIVE OR QUANTITATIVE FACTORS

i Trends, demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that will have a material
impact on the issuer's liquidity.

As of December 31, 2015, there were no known trends, demands, commitments,
avents or uncertainties that will have a material impact on the issuer’s liguidity.

Events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is material to the
company, including any default or acceleration or an obligation.

As of December 31, 2015, there were no events which may trigger & direct or
contingent financial obligation that is material to the Company.
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vi.

vii.

viii.

Material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations {including

contingent obligations), and other relations of the company with unconsolidated
entities or other persons created during the reporting period.

There were no off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including
contingent obligations), and other relations of the company with unconsolidated
entities or other persons created during the reporting period.

Material commitments for capital expenditures, the general purpose of such
commitments and the expected sources of funds for such expenditures.

For 2015, there were nNo material commitments for capital expenditures.

Any known trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably
expected to have 2 material favorable of unfavorable impact on net
sales/revenues/income from continuing operations. ~ :

The Company's results of operations depend largely on its ability to meet PDR
holders’ expectations from the dividends it receives and to monitor cash and cash
equivalents ievels to mest its obligations with respect to the Company’s current and
preceding year's operation. There are no known trends, events or uncertainties that
are reasonably expected to have a material favorable or unfavorable impact on net
sales/revenues/income from continuing operations.

Significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the Company’'s
continuing operations.

As of December 31, 2015, there were no significant elements of income or loss that
did not arise from the issuer’s continuing operations.

Causes for Material Changes in the Financial Statements

Balance Sheet (December 31, 2015 vs. December 31, 2014)

e Cash and cash equivalent increased by P181 thousand {0 P26.85 million as a
result of interest added to the principal amount of renewed cash placement with
Unicapital, Inc. ‘

Current liabilities likewise increased by P125 thousand to P366 thousand, due to
unpaid liabilities for professional and audit fees.

Seasonal aspects that had a materiél effect on the financial condition or results of

operations.

There are no seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial condition
or results of operations.
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INTERIM PERIODS

Copies of the Unaudited interim Financial Statements (period ended March 31, 2016) will
be made available to each stockholder at.least five (5) calendar days before the Annual
Meeting. Such report can be viewed at the GMA Network inc.’s official website and hard
copies of the company’s ifs and management discussion may be available upon request
five (5) calendar days hefore the said mesting.

VL. Corporate Governance

The Board of Directors has established a set of policies and initiatives to ensure that GMA
Holding's business practices are compliant with the best practices in corporate governance. The
Company has adopted a Revised Manual on Corporate Governance to institutionalize the
Company’s adherence {o these principles. This Revised Manual clearly sets out the principles
of good management and defines the specific responsibilites of the Board, the Board
Committees, and management within the over-all governance framework.

The Revised Manual sets out the principles of good management and defines the specific
responsibilities of the Board, the Board Committees, and Management within the over-all

governance framework.

The Revised Manual conforms to the requirements of the Philippine Securities and Exchange
Commission and covers policies, among others:

(a) independent directors, (b) key board committees (e.g. Executive Committee, Nomination
Committee, Audit Committee, Compensation and Remuneration Committee); (C) independent
auditors, (d) internal audit, (e) disclosure system of company's governance policies, (f)
stockholder rights, (g) monitoring and assessment, and (h) penaities for non-compliance.

On November 6, 2012, the Board designated a Compliance Officer, Atty. Roberto O. Parél, who

at the same time holds the designation of Vice-President. The Compliance Officer is
responsible for monitoring compliance by the Company with the provisions and requirements of

good corporate governance.

Rased on the Revised Manual on Corporate Governance dated July 31, 2014 as well as the
Company’s Annual Corporate Governance Report for 2015 which are adopted herein as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission, there has been no deviations from the

Company's Manual as of date.

VIl. Financial Statements
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STATEM.ENTS OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -

Securities and Exchange Commission
SEC Building, EDSA Greenhills
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The management of GMA Holdings, Inc. is responsible for the preparation and fair presentati_on,.of_thé

financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, including the ~additional : . -~

components attached therein, in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards. This

responsibility includes designing and implementing internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error, selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies, and making accounting estimates that are
reasonabie in the circumstances. :

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements and submits. the ‘sa_me_r to the . -

stockholders.

SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co, the independent auditors appointed by the board of directors, have
examined the financial statements of the company in accordance with Philippine Standards on-Auditing, -
and in its report to the stockholders, has expressed its opinion on the fairness of presentation upcn -

completion of such examination.
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Contral No.: C8200602358
Ferm Typa:  GFFS (rev 2006) .

GENERAL FORM FOR FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

NAME OF CORPORATION: GMA HOLDINGS, INC.
CURRENT ADDRESS: 5D Tower One, One McKnfay Place, New Bonlfzclo Globai Chy, Taguig City
TEL. N 8827777 loe 8001/8388 ' FAXNG.:

COMPANY TYPE; Holding Company PSIC:

{f these are lissed on consclidated financlel statemants, please o indicate In the caption.

Table 1. Balance Sheet

2013 | 2014

FINANCIAL DATA .
{tn Pitiizping Pesol
A ABSETE (hi+AdtAd+A4+AETAS+ATHASFAE+AID) 48,216 578 48,011,824
Ad Gurrant Assels (A 1.7 + A 12 +A 13+ A4 +A1,5} 27,413,055 27,152,608
A.1;1 Cash and cash equivalents (A.1.1.1 +A 112+ A1.1.3) 26,845,541 28,665,221
A 111 On hand : 5000 5,000
A.1.5.2 In domestic banks/eriities 26,841,541 26,680,221
A1.1.3 In forelgn banks/entities
A2 Trads and Other Recaivables (A4 2.1 +A1.2.2) ) 199,515 183,387
A1.2.1 Due krom domestic entlties {4,1.2.9.1 +A1.21.2 «A1.21.3+A12.14) 188,515 183,387
A.1.2.1.% Due from customers {trade). 24,430 39,080
A.1.21.2 Dus from related parties
A1.2.1.3 Otherg, speclfy {A1.2.1.3.4+A.1.2.1.3.2 175,085 143,407
A1.2,1.34 interest Recelvable 175,085 143407
£.1.2.1.3.2 Others

A1.2.1.4 Aliowanoe for doubtiul accounts (negative snéry)
A.1.2.2 Due from forelgn enfities, speciy :
AA321+41322+A1,323+A13.24)

At2.21

A12.22

Al223

4.1.2.24 Alowanca for doublful accounts insgative eltiry)

A3 Iverdories (A1 +A132+A 133 +A 134 +A1.35 +A156)

4,131 Raw materials and supplies

A.4.3.2 Goods In process (ncluding unfinlshed goods, growing cups, unfintshag

£.1.3.3 Finished goods

A.1.3.4 Marshandise/Goods ir franait

A1.3.5 Unbllad Services (in case of service providers)

5.1.3.5 Others, specify (A1 3.6.1+A.13.6.2)

4,1.3.8.1

A136.2

44 Financia Assets other than Cash/Recelvables/Equly investtnants (A.14.1 +A14.2+ .

ALLS+ALAARA 14540 A8 }
A 1.41 Financia! Assals af Falr Value through Profil or Luss ~issued by domastic

enlities (A14.1.1 +A 1A 1.2 +A 1,413 +A1 414 +A14.18)

A14.171  Nationa! Govemment

a14.1.2  Puohlic Financlsl stifuions

A14.4.3  Public Mon-Finanolal Instituficns

4144 Privele Einanciel instifufions

A14.15 Private NonFinancia! instiutions

142 Beld to Maturlty Invastments - lssued by domestic enfities
(A1421 041422 +21423+A1424+A74.05)

A1421  Mational Goverpment

A1.422  Public Fingnglal Instiutions

#1423  Pubiic Non-Fingnclal instivfions

AT424  Privae Fingneisl Jnstitufions

ALA2E  Private Hon-Fhancisl nstittions

e, Fighary, Forestry, Mining, and Quamying, \arufactixing, Electrleity, Gag and Vater, Conatrestion, Yhelera'o snd
’ v Soala! and Persang! Services, other forms of pro: n, find ganesal business
eci! forme ghall s ussd by publily held compnics and thoan engpgef i

NOTE:

This genaral fom is npplicabia to companias sngaged in Agrict
Retsil Trags, Transpociaticn, Slorags and Cammuaisgfans, Hatls and Restavrants, Resl Estata, Crmstity,
eprrations This form ig algn agplieshle {o ather companies et db not have industry-spetific Special Formg. p
rrbank Frandial inarmadiation schvilias, cradit gronting, stid acthitias suxlinny 1 Maancial fntprmadizfon, whizh reguire sec_cnrﬁa:ry liceree from SEC.

wnriRr Phifprins \ass or braremesieirbelanes of foreign comparatiang et aen | i3 e in the Phlippies where
On fhe ollier hand, forsler comarations ar fliose Wat #1e incorperatod gbroad, reliciny trarches of Phifppine

iemnzad lo do b

Domeslic rorperatians hre fhose which are incorevated
tha geetar of acnomie infarest or aclvity fe within the Philielnes.

comerations eporatng abroad.
engaged in Francial latermediatiar, Eaeliang francisl Infarmadiafion, of auxiteey financist sarvics. Ha-Binansiat netiutions refer to

Financial Wstiufions pee corparafiens principaly
Sif anieas,

corporations that ara pimanty engaged in the preductian of markot googs Rnd non-fnan



‘GENERAL FORM FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NAME OF CORPORATION: GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

Conptrol No.: C8§200602356
Form Type:. — GFES (rev 2006)

CURRENT ADDRESS:
TEL.NO: 9827777 loc 8001/68ED

50 Tawar One, One Meklnigy Place, N;wgomfamo Gighal Clév, Teguls City
FAXH

GOMPANY TYPR | Holding Company

If these are besed o consolidated financlal statements, please so Indicate in the capfion.
Tahble 1, Balance Shaet

“PEI

FINANCIAL DATA

2010
{in Phliippine Peso)

2u14

4,143 Loans and Recalvables -issued by domestic sntifes;
(AI431+A81432+81433+A1434+4 1435

A1431  National Government

A1432  Public Financlal Insttutions

A14.33 PJb!;cNGn-Fmancrai Institutions

41434 Private Fingnelat nsfitufions

41435 Private NonFlnancie] Ingftutions

A4 hyalisble-foi-sale financlal assets - lssusd by domestic anliles;
(B1441+A 1442 +A1843+A 1444 +A1440)

20,805,523

21.759.216

Aldd4t  Nafional Govemment.

&.1,442 Public Financial Insfiiutions,

At443 . Public Non-Financlal insfiutions

20805523

21754215,

ALddd. Pivate Epancil Institutions

Al445  Frivate Mon-Financipl nsinulions

o A1.4.5 Flnancla} Assats issued by torelap enfites (4. 1.45,1+A.1.4.5.2404, 14,5 38,14 54}

A1A81 _Fipanclel Assels af falr valug theovoh profitorjoss

A1452  Heldto-matuily nvestments

AN4E3  Loans angd Regeivablas

41454 Avgiable-

foy-88)a financlal assels.
AidsAMnguumxmgmmmﬁm@&Jmmﬂwemw

366999

04000

A1 Other Cuani Agsets (state s arial items) A 1.5,1 +A 152+ A1S S

1127

A 15,1 Prapald Tax Assel

366,839

302873

A152 Input Vat

Al53
.2 Eroperty, plant, and souipment [A2.1+4.2.2 +A23 +A2A+A25 «A26 +ALTHALE)

8.2.1 Land
A2.7 Buliding and improvements including leasahold Improvement

A2, Machinery pne equipment fon hand gnd in fransh}

4,24 Transporation/motor vahieles, autometive equipnept, autes and frucks, and delfvery agulpment

A25 Others, specly (A251 +A252 +A253+A254+A258)

4.25.1 Property, of equipment gsed for iucstion nirgoses

A2.5.2 Construstion in progiess

A2.5.3
ADEd
AZbE
.26 Appraisal incrapse, specly (A.2.6.1+A 282 +AZ03+A28 4]
A2.6.1
A2B2
A26.3
A264
____MA2liﬂﬂﬂwﬁﬁi_ﬂm5ﬁumiim_h&j§HW
'ngmmwmﬂmemauawmhmaa - -
A5 Eauity in domastc subsidipres/gHiliates

& 3.7 Boulity In forsion branchasfsubsidiades/affilates

A3 Others, acecly AL 11+ A2 +A33 4 £ A234)

5331

A33.2
A333

A334

A4 Investmen! Fraperty

AS Biolpaical Agsely

A6 intanolble Assets (AS T+ AS

__AA1 Majoy jlernis. anecify (A1 +AR17 +A813+ABT4)

AB1d

AB.1.2

AB1.3

_AB14

hb.2 Ofmers. spacity (A8J1 +AB.2.2 +ABZI+AGD A}

AgZ21
AB.2.2

A523

AG24

A pseis Clagslfied rs Held for Sale : .
i A8 Agzggg inciudad iy Dispasal Grouds GClassified g Held for Sale




Dontrol He.: (8200602355

Form Type: GEFS (rev 2606,

GENERAL FORM FOR FiNA’NCIAL STATEMENTS
NAME OF CORPORATION: GMA HOLDINGS, NG,

CURRENT ADGRESS: 3D Tower Cng, One MeKinlsy Place, New Bonifacio Glohal Clty. Tagufy ity
TEL.ND.: 4827777 lac BOO1/888E FAXNO.

COMPANY TYRE: HoidIng Comparny PEICT
If thase are hased an consolidated fnancial statements, please so indicate in the caption,

Tahlz 1. Balerce Sheet
i ) 20t pAEES
FINANCIAL DATA f.‘ni"hﬂipjioen“maj

jeculvahles {pat of cument pottion) (A8 1 +AR2+A 83 . -
7.8, From domestic enflties, spacify (A8.11 +A912+A81.3+40.1.4)

4911
AD 12
A8.1.3
AS14
A.8.2 From forsign enfifies snecif\/(A921 +48.22 +A823 +A824)
A92.1
A822
ASZ23
Adad .
A 83 Allowatcé for doublful acoounts, net of cutrent nortion (neqative antry)
] A0 Other Assais (4,101 - A,10.2 +A103+A 104041050

. A10.% Defermd charges - nat of amorfization
_,,_AJ.Q_Z«QMJH Tax
sefMiscelfaneous gepasts .
A, 4 v (A4 1+ AT042 + A 104 3+ A104.4)
MD“ 3 Doforred Tax Assed
A1042
A10ASZ
1044
Allowance for write. forred charesihad acoounts (meaative entrvl i
IB, LlAE{L Hﬁ BA+B2+ B3+ E,ﬁ B 47,638,048 47,740,558 |
8.1 Currant L labl*ﬂfﬂ%(m‘4+B12+B‘i3+&’t¢+815+616+817 47 638041 47,740,559
] “E 47,635,360 47.512.704
BLL1 i._gﬁs_l\lp.t&ﬁmbies :
B.1.1.2 Trade Pavables . 8.881 9.240
B.4,1.3 Fayables to Related Parties, specify {B.1.4.3.1 + B 32+8,1133 47,271,600 47,271,600
81931 Duefo share*zo!dem : 47,271,600 47,271.600
8143 2
B.1.13
B.1.14 Ofhers, specify B4 +B1142+B 114 354,879 231964
[3.1.4.4.1 Daferrad output VAT 2618 ‘ 4,284
B.1.1.4.2 Accrued Expenses 352261 227810
81143
B 17 Trade snd Qe Payables fo Foraan Entiies (spacliy) (B.1.2.1+8.1.2.248.1.2 3+B.1.2. 43
B.1.2.1
Bi.22
£.1.23
B1l.24
B43 Pavilnng
B.14 Financial Liabftilies (axcluding Trade and Cther Payables and Provisions)
5141+8142+R143
B14.4
B.142
8.1.4.3 .
B.id4 : ST
B41S us_hiﬂfmq fnr(‘urmnt Tax : 57T
2,419 -

B.4.7 Others, specify (If material, state separately; ndicate if thedem Is payab?e 1o publiciprhvate

ar fmangiaiinon-firancial inetitutions)
B.J.7.1 Dividends deciared 20 and not paic 2 balance sheat date 2419

8.1.7.2 Awcepiances Payabk
B.1.7.3 Llabifitiss under Trust Receiots
B.1.7.4 Portion of Long-term Dabt Due within ong year,
B.1.7.5 Deferred income :
B,1.7.6 Any othar curveint fabiliy in excess of &% of Tota) Current Lighilties, spechy: - -

(A1761+B 176281183 +B1 164

B 1761

B,1.7.6.2

B.1.7.8.3

BITEA




 Gonfrol No.: ©5200692356
Form Type:  GFFS (rev 2006)

GENERAL FORM FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NAME OF CORPORATION: GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

CURRENT ABDRESS: 50 Tower Ona, Gne Mck(nley Piace, Naw Bonlfagio Global Clty, Taguiy City
TEL.NO.  982-7777 loc BOOMIBEES FAX NO,!

-1

COMPANY TYPE: Holding Company
Hthase are based an consolidated financlal statements, piease 50 hidicale in the captian.

Table 1. Balance Sheet
ot I piAFS

FINANCIAL DATA ‘ . {fn Plilipplie Peso)

8.2 Long-tarm Debt - Non-curent fnlerest-bearing Lizbiliies (82,1 +5,22+823+8.24 +825)
B.2.1 Dermestic Publlc Finantig! Ingtitulions
£.2.2 Pomeslic Public Non-Finencisf institutions

B.2.3 Domestic Private Financig! Ingliutions
B.24 Domestic Private Non-Firancial Instifutions

8,25 Forelgn Financlel Instifutions

8.3 [ndabledness o Affilates and Relaled Parties (Mon-Current]

B4 Liabfiles Incudad in the Disposal Groups Classified as Held-for Sals

BS5 Othor Liabilties (85,1 + 8.5.7)

85.1 Deferred Income Tax

£8.5.2 Dthers, spemfy{ﬁﬁ?1+Bs22+8523+852“‘4)

B.0.2
B5.2.2
B.523
BSR4
C. EQUITY (.34 C4+ L5+ C.B4C.7+CH+C.H+C10) §80,330 N AL
100,000 106,000

C.1 Autharized Capital Stock (ne. of shares, par value and ola value: shiow datalls)

{CA14G12+C 13
.11 Common shares 110,000 shares par value of P10 100,000 100,000

C.1.2 Proferred Shares

C.13 Others
100,090 100,500

T Subscribed Gaplil Stogk (e, of sheras, par value and tofal value) (G.21+C 22+ C.2.3
G.2.4 Common shares I1U 000 sharas par valye of PG 100,000 100,800
.22 Prafarred Shares |
£.0.3 Others ! '

C.3 Paid-up Capltal Stock {C 3.9 +0.3.2) 100,000 100.600
.31 Common shares 110,080 shates par veiue of P40 100,000 100,000
C.3.2 Preforad Shares

.4 Additianal Paid-in Capltal / Caplisl in excegs of par value / Paid-in Surplus

.6 Minority Inferest - -

.6 Others, speciiy {C51+C8.8+C63+CE4 +C 6.8 675,007 538,814
¢ 5.1 Other comprebensive Reome 875,007 539814
C.62.

(K]
CEA
o ; et e R S '

.7 Anpraise] Surglus/evaluation Ingrement in ProperyRevalialon SUmus - -

©.8 Retained Eamings (G5, +C8.2] 1194 477 531,451
C.5.1 Appropriated
€.5.2 Unaporoptiated ' {194,477) 531,451

.9 Head / Home Offics Axgount (for Foreign Branclies oniy)

ative ant . .
.10 Cost of Stogks Held In Trsagury (negative aafry) . T wiTin

. TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY (B + C)




Control Neo.: (8200602356

Form Typa:

GENERAL FORM FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NAME OF GORPORATION: GMA HOLDINGS, ING,

GFFS frav 2005)

CURRENT ADDRESS: 5D Tower One, Ong MeKintey Place, New Bonifacle Globai Cify, Taguig Cliy

TEL, NC.: 8827777 loc BOC1/BBSY FAX NQ.:
COMPANY TYPE : Helding Company
J# these are based on consciidatad financial statements, please so indicate in the capton.

Table 2. Income Statement

F8IC:

2015

|

2044

2013

FINANCIAL DATA

{in Phliipsine Prso)

A REVENUE!INCOME (A1 + A2 +A3+A4) 2,141,960

1,651,958

1,205,493

A4 Nat Sales or Revenua | Recalpts from Operations (manufactuning, mining,utiltties, trede, 9,103

services, afc.) (from Primary Activity)

408,143

A2 Shars in the Profi; or Loss of Assoglates and Joint Ventures accountad for using fhe

5.3 Other Revenue (A3.] +A32 +A 33 +A3L +A35)

A.3.1 Rental incoma from: Land and Bulldings

A.3.2 Receipts from Sele of Merchandise (frading) firom Secondary Activity)

T roen

A.3.3 S&la of Regl Estale o other Properly and Equipment

AD 4 Rovallies, Franchise Faes, Copyrights (books? fitms, records, atc.)

A35 Others, speclfy (8.3.5.1 +A3.5.2+A353+A354+A385 +
AJSE+A3ET

A.3.5.1 Rentsl Income, Equiprrent

Al52

A3LS

Ad54

£385

A3S8

A357

A4 Othet income (non-operating! (Ad.1 +A42+ A4S +A 4 4) 7,052,857

1242815

1,205,483

2,052 857

1,242,815

1,205,493

A4.1 tnterest Incoms
A.4.2 Dividena Income

A3 Gain /{L.oss) from seliing of Assets, spachy
A4 +A 432 +A4 33 +A4 34 AR5 v ALSE + A4 D T)

Ad3

A433

Ad.33
Ad34

A4 Gain f {Lose) on Foreign Exchange (Ad41+A4LZ+ALLD + AL L)

4441

Ad4Z

A4S
Add4 i

B, COST OF GOODE S0LD(Bi+EB2+B3)
B Cost of Buods Marutaclured (B.41+B12+B13+BIA+B1E]

811 Direct Material Ussd

8,1.2 Direcl Labor

4.3 Gther Marufacturing Cost{ Overhead

B.1.4 Qoods inProcess, Beginning

B.1.5 Goods fn Process, End (negative shiry)

B.2 Finished Goods, Beginplng

B.3 Finlshed Goods, End (nogativa entry}
€. COSTOFSALEE(C.1+C2+¢CY

.1 Purghases

C.2 Merchandiss [nventory, Beginning
C.3 Merehandise Invertory, End (negative enfry)

D. COST OF SERVIGES, BPECIFY {21+ D.2+ D,Bl-l'-DA 41,5+ D.6)

D.1

¥,

D.3

DA

p.g

Jo.E
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Contrel Wo.: CS200602355

Form Type:  GFFS frav 2008)

GENERAL FORM FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NANME OF CORPORATION: GMA HOLDINGS, INC,

CURRENT ADDRESS: 80 Tower Ona, Ona McKiniay Place, New Bonlfacio Global Clty, Taguig City
TEL, NO.: 9827777 loc BOO1/BE8 FAX KO
COMPANY TYPE Hoiding Company pslC:

If these are based on consolfdated fnanciaf statements, glease so indicate Iy the caption.

Tahie 2. incoma Statement

FINANGIAL DATA wts T 01 | 2013
{in Fhilippine Pesa)
E. OTHER DIRECT COSTS, SPECIFY (B4 +ER+E3+Ed+ ES+ E6) : : o M
E.}
£2 ) N
E3
E4
£S5 ‘
E8 .
F, GROSSPROFIT(A-B-C-D-E) 2,141,840 1,651,968 1,205,483
G. OPERATING EXPENSES (G + 8.2+ B3+ G4) : 1,084,413 1,045,028 1,344,184
G.1 Selling or Markeling Exoensss :
(.2 Adminiskretive Expenses 1,004,413 1,045,026 1,344,184
5.3 Ceneral Expenses -
@4 Other Fxpenses, specity (G411 +G4.2+G A3+ 844 +G 45 + G46) -
3.4.1 nterest Expsnsa and Bank Charges -
G4.2
(4.3
G.4d
G4b
G.A5 ‘
M. FINANCE COSTS . . .
1. NET INCOME {L.0SS) BEFORE TAX {F - G- H] 1,047,547 806,932 138,691
J. INGOME TAX EXPENSE (nagativa entry) {412,354} (258,748} {241,089
K. INCOME (LOSS) AFTER TAX 535,193 350,185 (379,790
[, &mountaf (i) Post-Tax Profit or Luss of Discontinted Operations; and (i)
PosiTax Gain or Loss Recognizad on theffezsurement of Fair Valug less
Gastto Sefl or on the Disposat of the Assate or Disposal Group(s)
consfituting the Discontinued Operation (if any)
L1
L2
M. Profit or Loss Attributable to Minority Inferest
M. Profit or Loss Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parant




Cottrol Ne.: CER00ECZ365

Form Typs:  GFFS frev 2006)
GENERAL FORM FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NAME OF GORPORATION:  GMA HOLDINGS, INC.
CURRENT ADDRESS: 50 Towsr Ots, One MeKinlay Place, New Bonlfatio Global Clty, Taguig Clty
TEL. RO 982.7777 loc B001/8889 FAX NO:
COMPANY TYPE . Holding Company PSIC:
if these are based on consclidated financlal statements, please so indicate in the caplion. T
Table 3. Cash Flow Statemants )
FINANCIAL DATA R BT N R
{'n Phiflgpire Pesa}
CABR FLOWS FROM QPERATING ACTIVITIES
et income (Logs) Bafors Tax and Ex{ragidinary ltems 1,047,547 608932 {138,681)
AdjusimsTis to Reconclle Net Income fo Net Cash Pravided by Dperating Activities
Ugpreciation
hmortization, speciy:
Olhers, specify: Interest lucome {2.052,857) ‘ (1,242,815} {1,205,493})
Inferest expense and bank tharges - - .
Interast received 2021178 1,172,087 1,182,889
interest paid . )
- Income taxes pakd {41(,858) _{256,745) {241,098)
# ¥RiftaTsown of Propery, Plant, end Equipment i
Changes in Assats end Ligbilities:
Decrease {Increase) in:
eceivablas 15,850 40,850 142,730
Prepaid Tax {64,126) {88,512) 108 382
Others, specify:
Increase (Decreass) n:
Accounts payalie and accrued expenses 124,680 {488,384}, 246,485
Withholding taxes neyabie - - -
Others, apecify.  Dus to sheveholders -
el Gash Frovided by (Used in) Operating Fectivities {sum of above rows) 660,515 {2d, 767 {131,565
CAGH ELOWS ERUM INVESTING AGTIVETIES
fincrenss) Dacraase in Long-Term Receivables
{ncrease) Decrease In Invastment
Racuctions/iAddiions] to Prapery, Plant, and Equioment!
(Others, specify:
B Nar sk Proviaed oy (Used Inj Investing A_cﬁviﬁes fEtm ol apova rows)
CREH FLOWS EROM FINANGIRG AGTIVITIES
Proceeds from:
Loans
| ong-tarm Debl
issuance of Sacurities )
Others, spealfy. Payrment of available-forsate Invastment {21,600.500) -
Payments of.
{Loans)
{Long-term Debi}
{Stock Subscriptinns; .
Ofhers, specity (negative entry): . -
Payrani of cash dividends 1404 585)
ek Bash Provided by (dsed in) Fmancing Activities (su ST 3E0VE Fows| (49?.5?5) (l’i:ggzsgg?] 7 5-65)
T INGREASE N CABH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A + B +C) ] 181,320 {21,264,76() ,
Cash and Cash Equivalents .
o 26,665,221 47,028,988 48 081,553
Beginning of vegr sl " ) .—Efggg-
Efig ol year 75 A 58 6B, 241 792




Controf No,; C8200602356

_ Form Typer  GFFS {rev 2006)
GENERAL FURM FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NAME OF CORPORATION: GMA HOLDINGS, INC. ‘
CURRENT ADDRESE: 5D Tower One, One MeKintey Place, New Bonlfacio Giohal Clty, Taguig City
TEL. NO.; 9827777 local 800118883 FAXNQ.:
COMPANY TYPE: Haldlng Compary . FETC

i these are based on consolidatad financlsl statements, plesse so indleate In tha cantion,

Tabla 4. Statement of Changes in Equity

{in-Philippine Pese]

FINANCIAL DATA

Capltet Stock

Additonal Paid
In Gapltal

Revalustion
tncrement

Translatlon
Dtffererces

Unreaiized Galn on AFS

Irsvestmeant - Nat of Tax

Retalned Earnings

TOTAL

100,860

189,628

289,626

A Bolance, 2013

A1 Correction of Errprls!

A7 Changes in Accounting Poliey

B, Restated Balancs

C. Surplus
C.1 Surpius {Defieit) on Ravatuation of

Properties
C.2 Surplus {Deffett) on Revaluglion of .,

Invesiments

a2z

—La

ik natation &4
G4 Cther Surplus {shedify)

531,451

C.4.1 Othar comprehensiva income,

Caz

43
C44d

350,188

380,156

45

D, Met [ncoms {Losg) for the Perjod

E, [vidends {negative antryl

F._Aopraprigtion for (specif
Fi

2

Ea

Ed
F.B

¢, |zspange of Caplial $tozk

3,1 Common Stack

G2 Prefarred Stock

1171285

G.3 Others

160,000

531451

§39.314

M. Balance. 2014

H.1 Gorraction of Evor (s}

F_H2 Ghanaes n Acequnfing Poficy

Aestated Balancs,

[N

Ihius
J.1 Burplus {Deficl) en Revatuzion of

Properties
1.2 Surplus (Defight) on Revaluation of
Invegiments

1.3 Cunency Trensiation Diffsrances

(725,928}

{125.928)

J. r Surplus (specifv)

J.4.1 Other comorehensive loss

J42

J43
JdA

535,193

836,193

JAS

{500,600}

K. Net Ingome (Logs! for the Parled

L. Dividends {nexative anfry}

opriation fo eifyl

M.
.2

M3

W4

M.E
N. |ssuapce of Canital Stock

N1 Comman Stock

N2 Preferred Sloch

(194,477

675,007

106,000

#.3 Others
0. Balence, 2015



COVER SHEET

for
"AUDITED BINANDIAL STATEMENTS.

SEO 'Reglstrallan Number
cls[z]elols]ol2]a]5]s

COMPANY NAME '
c|m[a] |E[olLip|1|N|c|s|.| |1|N|c]. | [

L |

PRINGYPAL OFFICE(No./ Stsat/ Barangay /Oy /Town / Province ‘
5!1) T|agjw|e|r Olale;, Olnle Mie|Kliiinjlje |y

[Tl [ In[e[s] Jo[iTo[v[a[1] [Blofali[cTalelilo] [c|t]e]s

plrit Blolnli|flale|iloi, Tlejglult|g] |Cli|t]y

Pitla

Baardsn Lcensa Type, H Applicable

Furm Type Depariment requirng te rport
A|AIF|E — Not Applicable
{ SOMPANY INFORMATION |
Company's Erall Addrass Campany's Telephone Nuntbar Mokilie Nurmhar
| - 9827777 - |
Mo, of Sioekhalders Annva] Meeing {Month f Bay) Fiscal Yaar {ionth  Day)
i 7 | 813 | 12/31
L CONTACT PERSON INFORMATION |
Tha designatst eonisal parson MUST be an Offcer of the Crporation
Name of Contact Parson Email Addrzss Tulephans Numbers thablls Number
Mr, Roanldo P, Mastrili rpmastrili@gmanstwork.com 0821777 -
1 CONTACT PERSUN's ADDRESS |
GMA Network Center, Timog Avenue corner EDSA, Quezon City
oF e oifper designaled £5 cortac! persan, such fnckierd shall he repored io tha

NOTE 1 In case of oeath, resignafion or cessalon of ofice
Commission witiin Hidy (30 calendar days fom He occurence {hereo! willt

designated.
2 : Al Boves musi be propery snd complately Medwip. Faliure fo do-so shail causs fhe defay &n updsting the corporsiion's racoids with
the Commission andior non-receini of Notlce of Defitlencles. Futher, non-receipl of Nalics of Defictenias shel nol excuss lhe coporafien from

izt for ts delictanaies,

infomration end complie contact delalle of the new comlae! pErson

RN



P

g V SyClp Gores Velayo & Co.  Tel (832) 881 0307 BOA/PRC Rep. No. 9001,
G750 Ayals Avanue Fax: (BA¥) 810 0872 Dacamber 14, 20 5, vaiid untll December 31, 2018
Bufidi bt 1228 Makat City ey.camiph SEC scoradiation No, B012-FFR-4 (Groups AY,
ulamg g betier Phitippines MNovembsar 10, 2018, valld unlil November 9, 2018

working werid

TNDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
GMA Holdings, Inc, '

3D Tower Dus, One McKinley Place

Naw Hobal Bonifacio City

Fort Bonifasio, Taguig City

Ruport on the Finaneial Statements

We have audited the sscompanying financial statements of _GIVEA Holdings, Tnc., which comprise the
statements of finaneial position as at December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the statements of
comprehensive income, statsments of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2015, and a summary of aignificant rccounting policies

and other explanatory information.
Management 's Responsibility for the Finangicl Statemeitls

Management is responsible for the prepatation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
sceordance with Fhilippine Finmneia] Reporting Standards, and for-such internal control a3
management determines is necossary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are fres

from material misstaternsnt, whather dus to fraud or error,

Auditars' Responsibility

bility is to express an opinion on fhese financial statements based on our audits. We

conducted our audits in accardance with Philippine Standards on Anditing, Those standards require

that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the anudit to obiain reasonable
assurance sbout whether the financial statements are fres from material misstatement.

Cur responsi

An audit invatves performing procedurss to obtain eudit evidence ahout the amounts and disclosures

in the financial statements. The prosedures selectad depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the

assezsment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial staternents, whether due o fraud or

error, In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internzl conteo! relevant to the eatify’s
nreparation and fair presentation of the financial statoments in order to design audit procedures that ere
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effeciveness
of the sutity’s intemal control, An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of Accounting
policies used and the reascnableness of accounting sstimates made by management, 25 well 2
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We belleve fhat the audit evidoncs we have obtained is sufficient and approprigte to provide & basis for
our audit opinion. TR SRR
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Opinion

In aur opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of GMA Holdings, Inc. as at December 31, 2015 and 2014, and its financial performance and casgh
Flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2015 in accordance with Phifippine

Financlal Reporting Standards.

Report on the Supplementary Information Reqﬁirad Under Revenue Regulationy 15-2010

Our andits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinfon on the basic financial statements
teken as a whole. The supplementary information required under Revenue Regulations 15-2010 in
Note 17 to the financial statements is presented for purpases of filing with the Bureay of Internal
Revene and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of the management of GMA Holdings, Inc. The information has been subjected fo the
auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic fipancial staterments. In our opinior, the
information is fairly stated, in all matetiel respects, in relation to the hasic finencial statemerits taken

as & whole.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO &£ CO. -

Hapienia K Boovbor

Marizeris N, Barbaso

Partner R,
CPA Certificate Ne, §7101 R R T e
SEC Accreditation No, 1513-A (Group A), jLABGE ﬁ?ﬁggfﬂ ERE spnigr, f
October 6, 2015, valid until October §, 2018 g: - SASSISTANLE Biing,
ts : ;

Tax Identification No, 202-065-T16

BIR Accreditation No, 08-001998-108-2013,
March 4, 2015, vaiid upil March 3, 2018
PTR Ne. 5321611, January 4, 2016, Makati City

| AR 14 201 | T |
RECET

LORENA £ Vi n}\vé:

April §, 2016
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GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

{
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION L@ I, N———
: e |

S s ks
kot BERITTT T REVIPY S
pARMAND CONTRRTS J/

& December 31
2015 2014
ABSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 6, 13 and 14} P26,846,541 $26,605,221
Accounts receivable (Notes 13 and 14) 198,515 183,587
Other currant assets 266,995 304,000
Total Current Assets 27,413,055 27,152,608
Moncurrenl Asget :
Available-for-sals investment (Notes 7, 13 and 14) 20,805,523 21,759,316
‘ ' R48,218,578,  B480911.824
LIABYLITINS AND EQUITY
Current Lizhbilities
Accounts payable and other current ligbilities
(Notes 8, 13 and 14) P366,179 £241,194
Due to shareholders (Notes 12, 13 and 14) 47,271,600 47,271,600
Income tax payable 268 -
Total Current Liabilities 47,638,048 47,512,794
Nopcurrent Linbility
Deferred income tax liahility (Note 11) - 227,765
Total Lisbilities 47,638,048 47,740,559
Equity (Note 5) '
Capital sinck 150,000 104,000
Refained carnings 475,007 A 539,614
Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale mvestment -
net of tax (Noie 7) {194,477} 531,451
Total Equity 584,530 1,171,265
£48,218,578 P48.911,824

Sea pecompanying Notes o Finawieial Statemants,

BUREAL D BTLAT F0v—F
LARGE Tr“.*{F’f'.“E;‘?,. .
LARGE TAXPAVEES ASSIETACC Bivis

RECEIV

LOREMA b, Vica 5.

@"' APR 14 206 } faim

T



- GMA HOLDINGS, INC,
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

VYears Ended December 31

2615 2014 2013 -
RUVENUL .
Interest inpome (Notes 6 and 7) 832,052,857 £1.242 B15 1,205,493
Exercise fees (Note 5) _ 59,103 409,143 -
2,141,260 1,651,538 1,205,493
QPERATING EXPENSES (Note 10) 1,094,413 1,045,026 1,344 184
INCOME {1088} BEFORE INCOME TAX 1,047,547 | 606,932 {138,691)
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX (MNote 11) 412,354 256,746 241,009
) NET INCOME (LOS&SY « 635,193 150,186 379,750y
OTHER COMPREBENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
ftem ta be reclassified re profit or foss in
subseguent periods -
Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale .
invastment - pat of tax (Note 7) (725,328) 531,451 -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (1LOSS)  (@90,735) BRE1 637 379,720

Basic/Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share (Note 15)  P63.52 £35.02 (237.98)

Sag apcomponying Noles o Finarictal Statenients.

e




GMA BOLDINGS, INC,

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES INEQUITY

Unreniized
(Gain (Loss) en

Retalned AviHinble-for-sale
Capita? Earnings Investment - Nel

Stook (Note 13 (Note §) gf Tax MNate 7) Tote! Equity
Banlences ni at Jopuary 1, 2815 BIOG,000 £539,814 531451 $1,171,265
et income - 633,103 Co- 635,153
Other gomprehensive loss - - {'125,928) (725, 320)
Total comprehensive income (Joss) - 635,193 {735,028} {96,733)
Cash dividends {Note 9) - (300,000} - (504,060)
Balznces ps ot Degember 31, 2015 B100,000 BEYE,007 (194 477) BEA( 530
Balances gg af January 1, 2014 #100,060 PI189,624 e F205,628
Net income - 150,186 - 350,186
Other comprehensive ineome oo - 531,451 511,451
Tota) comprehensive inubme - 350,186 531,451 - 831,637
Holances as gt Decomber 31, 2014 B170,000 RB539.814 #531,451 R1,171,265
Balances ag at January 1, 2013 B100,000 R3G9,418 B POEILIR
Toial comprgheasive juss - (379,790) - (379,780}
Balances es at December 11, 2013 B100.000 P8G.628 He £289,618

See aeeompanying Notes fo Financial Sfutements,

. tARC&TﬁXR&.
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GMA HOLDINGS, INC,

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Income (loss) befors income tax
Adjustment for interest incomo
(Notes 6 and 7)

Years Ended December 31
2015 2014 2013
21,047,547 BG06,932 (B138,691)
(2,052,85T) (1,242,815) (1,205,493)

Operating loss before working capital changss

(1,003,310)

(635,883)  (1,344,184)

Decrease (Increase) in:

Accounts receivabls 15,550 40,650 142,730

Other cigrent azsets (64,126) {96,512) (98,382)
Incresse (decreass) in accounts payable end B

other current liabilities » 124,580 {488,364) 246,485
Cash flows used in operations {929,306) {1,180,109) 1,053,351
Interest received 2,421,179 1,172,087 1,162,885
Income toxes paid {410,958) {256,745} (241,095}
Net cash provided by (used in) operating

activities 680,915 {264,767) (131,565)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITY

- Purchase of available-for-sale investment (Note 7) - (21,060,800 -

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY
Peyment of cash dividends (Note %) {499,555) - -
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH

AND CASH BQUIVALENTS 181,320 (21,264,767} (131,555)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 24,665,221 47,828,988 48,061,553
CASH AND CASH RQUIVALENTS

AT END OF YEAR (Nute 6) P26,846,541  P26,665,22] P47,929,988

Sew uccompanying Notes te Financial Statements,
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GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

L.

Corporate Information

GMA. Holdings, Inc. {the Company) is incorporated in the Philippines to invest in, purchase ar
otherwise acquire and own, hold, use, sell, assign, transfer, morigage. pledge, exchange or
atherwise disposs real and personal praperty of every kind end description. The registered office
address of the Company is 5D Tower One, One MoKinley Place, New Global Bonifacio City, Fort
Banifacio, Taguig City. The Company was registered with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) on February 13, 2008,

The accounting and administrative functions of the Compeny are undertaken by GMA Network,
Inc. (GMA), an affiliate.

Ti 2007, the Company issued Philippine Deposit Recsipts (PDRs}, which were listed.and traded in
The Philtppine Stock Exchange, [nc. (PSE) (see Note 5).

The Company wili not engage in any business or purpose other than i conneston with the
fssuance of the PDRs, the performance of the obligations under the PDRs and the acquisition and
holding of the underlying shares of GMA in respect of the PDRs isened, This includes
maintaining the Company’s listing with the PSE and maintaining its stafus as 2. Philippine person
for as long s the Philippine law prohibits ownership of GMA's shares by non-Fhilippine person,

No reportable segment information is prasented as the Compeny's limited operations are
adequately presented in the statements of comprehensive ineome.

The secompanying financial statemsnis of the Company were appraved and anthorized for
issuance in ascordance with & resolution of the Board of Directors (BODY en April 8, 2016.

Basis of Preparation and Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

Basis of Preparation
The Company’s financial statements have been prepared in acoordence with Philippine Financial

Reporting Standards (PFRS).

e financiat statements of the Company have been prepared on 2 historical eost basis, except for
available-for-sals (A¥S) investment, which is measured at fair valus, The financial statements are
presented in Philippine peso, which {5 the Company’s functional and presentation currency. All
values are roundsd to the nearest peso, except when ctherwise indinated.

Changes fn Accouting Poligies and Disclosures
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, exaept for

the adoption of following smendments and improvements to PFRS and Philippine Accounting
Standards (PAS) which the Company adoptad during the ysar:

n PAS 19, Emplay
= Annual Improvements to PFRS (2010-2012 cycle)
»  DERS 2, Share«based Payment - Definition of Vesil TR TER

Rt
«  PFRS 3, Business Combinations - Accounting far zéﬁﬁﬁ‘@%@ e %@%ﬁ}fggb@ﬁﬂ 1688
Combinaiion ~ e 3IBTANGE Divigie

CAPR 14 2008
R E i

ce Benefits - Defined Bengfit Plans; Empioyee Contributions {(Amendments)

Date
TSis

IR




2.

* PFRS 8§, Operating Segments - Ageregation of Operating Segments and Reconciliation of
the Total of the Reporiabie Segment s Assets to the Entiy's Assels _

»  PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment, and PAS 38, Intangible Assets - Revaluation
Method - Praportionate Restatement of Accumulated Amortization emd Depreciation

v PAS 24, Reloted Party Disclosures - Key Management Personnel

*  Annual Improvemenis to PFRS (2011 - 2013 cyele)

»  PERS 3, Business Combinations ~ Scope Exceptipns for Joint Arrangemenis

s PERS 13, Fair Folue Measurement - Portfolio Exeeption

= PAR 4Q, Brvastment Property - Ancillary Services

The adoption of these standards did not have any impact on ths financial statements of the
Company,

Future Chenges in Accougting Policies

The Compeany will adopt the following PFRS‘whsn these bacome effective. Except as utherwise
indicated, the Company does not expect the adoption of these new and amended PFRS to have &

e . f )
wignificant impact on its financial statements. .

Effective January 1, 2016

»  PEFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, and PAS 28, Investments In Associates and
Joint Ventures ~ Invesiment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception {Amendments),
These amentdments clarify thxt the exemption in PFRS 10 from presenting consolidated
financial statements applies to a parent entity that is a subsidiary of an investment entity that -
measures all of its snbsidiaries at fair value and that only a subsidiary of an investment entity
thet is not an investment eatity itzelfand that provides support services to the investmant
entity parent is consolidated. The amendmenis also allow an invagtar (that is not &n
investment entity and has an investment entity associate or joint venture), when applying the
equity method, to retain the fair valus measurernent applied by the investment entity associate

or joint venturs o is interests in subsidiaries,

n  FFRS 11, Joint drrangements - Avcounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations
{Amendments). The amendments to PFRS 11 require a joint operaior accounting for the
acquisition of an fnterest in & jolat operation, i which the activity of the joint operation
camstitutes e business (as defined by PFRS 3), to apply the relevant PFRS 3 principles for

business combinations ecoounting: The amendments elso clarify thata previgusly held
interest in & joint oparation is not remeasured on the aoquisition of an additional interest in the

sarne jolnt operation while joint control is retained. In addition, scope axclusion has been
added to PERS 11 to specify that the amsndments do not apply whea the parties sharing joint
control, including the reporting entity, are under common control of the same uitimate

controlling partty.
The amendments apply to both the acquisition of the nitial interost in & joint operation and the

aequisition of any additional interests in the same joint operation and are prospectively
effective Tor annual pericds beginaing on or after Janvary 1, 2016, with early adopticn

permitted,

TONERAN
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= PFRS 14, Regulatory Deferral Accoyr. PFRS 14 is an optional standard that allows an entity,
whose activities are subjeat to rate-regulation, to santinie applying most of its existing
accounting policies for regulatory deferral account balanoes upen its firse-time adoption of
PFRS. Eniities that adopt PFRS 14 must pregent the regulatory deferral accounts as separate
line item on the stetement of financial position and present movements in thege aceount
balances as separate line items in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income (QCI). The standard requires disclosures on the nature of, and risks assooiated with,
the entity’s rate-regulation and the effects of that rats-regulation on it financial statements,

»  PAS 1, Presentation of Financlal Statements - Disclosure Inittarfve (Amemdments}. The
amendments are intended to assist entities in applying judgment when meeting the
presentation and disclosure requirsments in PFRS. Foilowing are the elarifications:

w  That entities shall not redues the understandabiiity of their financial statements by either
obseuring material information with immaterial information; or aggregating materia] items
that have diffgrentnatures or functions;

= That specific [ine items in the statement of income and OCI and the statement of financial
position may be disaggregated;

®  That entities have flexibility as to the order in wh

statements; and
+  Thatthe share of OCI of associates and joint ventures accounted for using the equity

method must be presented in aggregate as a single [ine ftem, and clagsified between those
items that will or will not be subsequently reclassified fo profit or loss.

icht they present the notes to finagaial

Barly application is permitted and entitfes do not need to disclose that fact as the amendments
are considered to be clarifications that do not affect an entity’s apcounting policles or

- gecounting estimates,

= PAS 16 and PAS 41, Agriculture - Bearer Planis (Amendments). The amendments change
the sceounting requirements for biological essets that meet the definition of bearer plants.
Under the amendments, biclogical assets that meet the definition of bearer plants will no
longer be within the scope of PAS 41, Agriculture. Inatead, PAS 16 will apply. After initial

plants will be measured under PAS 16 at eccumulated cost (bafore

mode] (afier maturiiy). The
the scope of

recognition, beerer
maturity) and using either the cost mode! or revaluation
smendments also requirs that produce that grows on bearsr plants will remain in

PAS 4] measured at fair valoe less costs to ssll. For government granis related o bearer
plants, PAS 20, dccounting for Government Grents and Disclosure of Government Assistance,
will apply. The amendments are retrospsctively effective for aunual perivds beginning cnor

after January 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted,

PAS 16 and PAS 38, Fuangible Assets - Clarification of Acceptable Mathady of Depreciation
and Amortization (Amendments). The amendments clarify the principle in PAS 16 and

PAS 38 that revenne reflects a pattern of ecopomic benefits that are genarated from operating
s business (of which the asset is part) ratier than the eeonomic benefits that are consumed
through use of the asset, As & resuit, A revenue-bssed method cannot be used fo depreciate
property, plaat end equipment and may only be used in very limited pircumsiances to amortize
intangible 2ssets, The amendments are gifective prospectively for annual pariods beginning
on or after January 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted.
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PAS 27, Separate Financial Siatements - Equity Method in Separaie Financial Statements
(Amendments). The amendments will allow extities to vss the enuity method to account for
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and assaciates in their separate financial staternents,
Entities already applying PFRS and slecting to change ta the squity method in it separate
financial statements will have to apply that change retrospeetively. The amendments are
effective for anpual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, with early adoption

permitted.

© Annuel Improvemeats {0 PFRS (2012-2014 cycle)

PERS 5, Non-current Assels Held for Sale and Discontirued Operalions - Chenges In
Methods of Disposal, The smendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that changing
from a disposal through sale to 2 disposel through distribution to owners and vice-versa
should not be sonsidered to be a new plan of disposal, rather it iy & continuation of the
original plan. There s, thersfore, no interruption of the application of the requirements in
PFRS 5. The amendment also clarifies fiat changing the disposal method daes not change
the date of classification. :

PFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures « Servicing Contracis. PFRS 7 requires an
entity to provide disclosures for any continuing Involvement in a trensferred assef that is
derecoguized in its entirety, The amendment clarifies that a servicing contract that
inciudes a fee can constitute contipuing involvement in a financial asset. An entity must
gssess the nature of the fee and arrangement against the guidance in PFRS 7 in order to
sssess whether the disclosures are required. The nmendment s to be appiied such that the
pssessment of which servicing contracts constitute continuing invelvement wili nesd to be
done retrospectively, However, comparative disclosures are not required to be pravided
for any period beginning before the annual period in which the entity first applies the

gmendments,

PFRS 7, Applicabliity of the Amendments to PFRS 7 to Condensed Interin Finoncial
Statements. This amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that the disclosures
op offsetting of financial assets and fipancial {{abilities are not required in the eondensed
interim financial report unless these provide a significant update to the information

reported in the most recent annual repot,

PAS 19, Employee Benefiis - Regional Market Issue Regarding Discownt Rare, This
amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that market depth of high quality
eorporate bonds is assessed based on the currency in which the obligation is denominated,
rether then the country whers the obligation is located. When these is no deep market for

high quality corporate bonds in thet currency, government bond rates must be ussd.

PAS 34, Jnterim Financial Reporting - Disclosure of Information ‘Elsewhere in the
Interim Financial Report’. The amendwment is applied retrospectively and elarifies that the
required interim disclosures must either be i1y the interim financial statements or
incorporated by cross-reference between the interim financial statements and wherever
these are included within the greater interim financiul report (8.2, in the management

sonmmentary or risk report),

AR



Effeciive January 1, 2018

PERS 8, Financial strumenss. In Inly 2014, the International Accounting Standards Hoard
(TASE) izsued the final version of International Financial Reporting Standard (ZFRS) 9,
Financial Instruments. The new standard {ronamed PERS 9) reflects all phases of the
financial instriments project end replaces PAS 39, Financlal Instruments: Recognition and
Measuremeni, and all previous versions of PFRS 9. The standard introduces new
requirements far classification and measurement, impairment, and hedge uccounting, PFRS g
is effactive for annuel) pesiods beginning on or after January 3, 2018, with sarly application
permitted. Retrospective application is requived, hut providing comparative information is not
compulsory. For hedge accounting, the requirements are generally applied prospectively, with
some limited exceptions, Early epplication of previous versions of PERS 9 {2009, 2010 and
2013) is permitiad {f the date of initial appiication is before February 1, 2015.

IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracis with Customers, IFRS 15 was issued in May 2014 by the
1ASE and establishas & nsw five-step madel that will apply to$evefive arising fram contracts

with customers, Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which an entity expscts to he entitled in exchange for transfercing goods or

services to & oustomer. The principles in IFRS 15 provide 2 more structured approach to
measuring and recognizing revenue. :

The new revanue standerd is applicable to alf entities and will supersede all current revenue
recognition requirements ynder IFRS. Either o full or modified retrospective application is
required for annual periods beginning o or efter January 1, 2018, Early adoption permitied,

Effective Jonuary 1, 2018

2016, the TASE issued its new standard, TFRS 16, Leases,

IFRS 16, Leases. On fanuary 13,2
which repleces Intemational Accounting Standard (IAS) 17, the current leases standard, and

the reiated Interpratations.

Under the new standard, lessees willno longer classify their leases as gither opereting or
finance leases in accardance with IAS 17, Rather, tagsees will apply the single-asset model,

Under this model, lessees will recognize the assets and related liabilities for most leases on
their balance shieets, and subsequently, wiil doprecizte the lease asssls and recognize interest
on-the lease linbilities in profit or loss, Leases with a term of 12 moths or less or far which
the underlying asset is of low value are exempled from thess reguirements,

The acconnting by lessors is substantially unchﬁnged as the new standard carries forward the
sg of Jessor accounting under IAS 17, Lessors, howsver, will be requirad to disclese

prineipl
their finencizl statements, particularly on the risk exposure to residual

more information in
value.

The new standard iz effective for annual periods heginning on or after Junuary 1, 201%,
Eniities may =arly adopt IFRS 16 but only if they have also adopted IFRS 15. When adopting
IFRS 16, an entity is permitted to use either a full retrospective or a modified refrospective

approach, with options to uss certain transition reliefs.
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With Deferred Effective Date

= Philippine Interpretation from International Finanoial Reporting Interprotations Comumittee 15,
Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate, This interpretation covers accounting for
revenue and associated expenses by entities that undartake the construction of real estate
directly or through subcontractors. The interpretation requires that revenue on constrection pf
real estate be recognized only upon completion, except when contract to be accounted for
under PAS 11, Construction Contracts, or involves rendering of servioss in which case,
revenue is recognized based on stage of completion, Contracts involving provision of services
with the construction materials and where the risks and reward of ownership are transferred fo
buyer on & continuous basis will also be accounted for baset on stage of completion, The
SEC end the Financial Reporting Standards Council have deferred the effectivity of this
interpretation until the final revenue standard is issued by the IASB and an svaluation of the
requirements of the final revenua standard sgainst the practices of the Fhilippine real estate

industry is compisted, TR

Summary of Significant Aceounting Policies

Current versus Nonourrent Classification

The Company presents asssts and Tiahilities in statsment of financial position based on
currsni/noneurrent classification.

An asset as current when it is:

Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal mperaﬁng oyele,

Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or
Cash and cash squivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used 1o seftls & liability

for at least tweive months after the reporting period.

L] = m L]

A lighility is enrrent whe

1t is expected ¥o be settled in mormal operaling cycle;

It is held primarily for the purpose of rading;

1t is-due to be settied within tweive months after the veporting period; or

Thare is no unconditional Tight to defer the settlamant of the liability for at leagt tweive

menths after the reporting peried.

L " I

The Compasy classifies all other agsets and Labilities as noncirrent.

Fair Value Measurement ‘
Fair value is the estimated price that would be received to seli an asset or paid to transfer & lability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the meastrement date. The fair valus

measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction ta sell the assel or tranafer the

[iability takes place sither:

= in the principal market for the asset ar Hability; or

« inthe absence of a principal masket, in the most adventageous market for the asset or liability,

TR
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The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the sssumptions that market participants
would uge when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best

sconomic interest,

A Fair value measurement of a non-financis! asset takes into account a market participant’s ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling itto
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techriques that ave wppropriate in the circnnstances and for which
sufficient data are aveilable to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

Asasts and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Company’s {inancial
statemersts are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the

Alowest level input that is significant to the fakr valus measurement as a whale:

v Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical asscts or liabilities;

x  Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indiréctly observeble; and

s Level? - Valuation techniques for which the lowest leva! input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and Liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on g recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have ocourred between levels in the hisrarchy by
reassessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that s significant to the fair value
measurement a3 & whole) at the ead of esch reporting date.

The Company determines the policies and procedures for both recurring and non-recurring fair
value measurements. For the purpoge of fair valus disclosures, the Company has defermined
ciagses of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics end risks of the asset or
Hability and the leve] of the fair value hierarchy.

Datalls as to how the fair vaiue of assets and liabilities are measured are provided in Note 14,

Finaneial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that glves dse to a financial asset of one entity and &
financial ligbiilty or equity and a financial liability or equity instruments of another entity.

Daie of Recognition. The Company recognizes a financial asset or a finaucial lability in the
statements of financial position when it bscomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrumont. Purchases o sales of financial asssts that require delivery of asssts withiu a time
frame established by regulation or sonvention in the market place (regular way trades) are
recognized on the trade date, i.e. the date that the Compeny commifs to purehase or sell the asset.

Initial Recognition md Measurement. Finapcin assets ave classified, at initial recognition, as
financizl assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), louns and roceivables, held-to-maturity
(HEMY invesiments, AFS. investments, or a8 derivatives designated es hedging instruments in an
effactive hedge, as gporopriate. All financiel assets are reoognized initially st fair value plus, in -

RSO

o



.8.

the case of financial asssts not recorded ut FYPL, transaction costs that are atiribntable to the
acquigition of the financiel assets, '

Financial Habilitier are ciassified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVPL, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate. All financial liabilities ere recognized initlally at fair value and, in the case of loans
and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributeble transaction costs,

The Company has no financial asset and financial Habilitles at FVPL, HTM investments and
derivatives designated a5 hedging instruments in an sffective hedge as at December 31, 2015 and

2014, ‘ :

Subseguent Measurement. . The subsequent measurement of financial assets and liabilities depends
an their classification as follows:

Loans and Receivables. ~L{c:a_ns and receivables are ‘non-derivativa financial assete with fixed or
determinable payments it afe not quated in an active market. Afler initial measurement, such

‘Finaricial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate {(EIR)

method, less impairment. Amortized cast is calculated by taking into peeount ainy. disceunt or
premium on acquisition and fee or costs that are an integral part af the BEIR. The EIR amortization

and the losses arising from impairment are recognized in profit or loss.

This category inciudes cesh and cash equivalents and accounts receivabie.

ATS Investments. AFS financiel assets include equity inveastments and delit securities, Equity
investmenis classified as AFS are those that are neither classified as held for trading nor
designated at FVPL, Debt securities in this category are those that are intended to be held for an
tndefinite period of time and that may be sold in response to needs for Higuidity or in response to

changes in the market conditions.

After initial messurement, AFS financial assets ars subssguently measured ot fefr value with
unrealized gains or logses recognized in OCI and credited in the AFS reserve unti! the investiment
is derecognized, at whioh time the cumulative gain or Joss is recegnized in the statement of
comprehensive income, or the investment is determined to be jmpatred, when the cumulative loss
is reciassified from the AFS reserve 1o the statement of comprehensive income, Interest earned
whilst holding AFS financial assets is reparted es interest income using the EIR method.

The Company's AFS investment in 2015 aud 2014 sonsists of unquoted debt securities.

Other Financial Liabilities. This category pertains to fnancial labilities that are not held for
trading or not desiguated as at FVEL upon the inception of the liebility. These include lisbilities
arising from operations or borrowings. Other finapoial lighilities are recognized initially at fhit
value and are subsequently carried at amortizad cost, taking intc aceount the mpaot of applying
the EIR method of amartization (or accretion) for any related premium, discount and any directly
attibutable ransaetion costs, Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities
are derscognized as wsl! as through the EIR amortization process.

This categery includes accounts payable and ofher current liabilities {excluding stetutory
payables), due to shareholders and dividends payable.

TR
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Derecopnition of Financial Assets and Linbilities

Financial Assef, A financial psset {or, where applicable, & part of a financis! asset or part of a
group of simitar financial assets) is primarily derscognized (Le., removed from the Company’s
statement of financial position) when: '

5 the rights to receive.cash flows from the asset have expired; or

= the Comparry has transferred it rights to recejve cash flows from the asset or hag ssgumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without materist delay to a third party under 2
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (&) the Company has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (&) the Company has neither transferred nor retalned
substantially all the risks and rewards of the assef, but has transferrsd sontrol of the asset.

When the Company has trensferred its rights to recaive cash flows. from an asset or has entered
into & pess-through arrangement, it evaluates if.and tp what extent it bag refained the risks and
rewards 0f ownership. When it has noither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the asset, nor transferrad controt of the esset, the Company confimues to recognize
the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement, In that case, the
Company also recognizes an associated lizbility, The transferred asset and the associated lipbility

are messured on & basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Cantinuing involvement that takes the form of # guarantee over the transferred assets is measured
at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Company could be required-to repay. '

Under the “pass-through” test, tha.CQmpaﬂy is deemed to have transferred substantially the risks
and rewards of the related investment in GMA. Accordingly, the Investment in GMA and the
related PDR labilities have been derecognized under PAS 39, Financial Instrinnents: Recogrition

and Measuramant (see Now 5).

Financigl Liabilities. A fivancial liability js derecognized when the obligation under the liability
is discharged or cancelled or hes expired, When an existing financtal liability is replaced by

another from the same lender on substantially different torms, or the terms of an existing Ilability
are substantialiy modified, such an exchange or modification is treated 25 derecognition of the

original liability and the recognition of & new liability, and the difference in the respective
carrying amaunts is recognized in profit or loss,

Impairment of Financial Assets
The Compeny assesses at each reporting date whether & financial asset or group of financial assets

is impaired. An impairment exiats of one or moro events that ocourrsd since the initial recognition
of the asset (an ncurred loss event), has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or & group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Bvidence of
impairment may incjude indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant finanpial difficulty, default or delingnency in interest or grincipal paymoeits, the
probebility that they will enter barkruptoy or other finaneial recrganization end where observable
data indicate that thers is measurable decrease in the sstimaied future cash flows, such as changes
in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Assels Carvied at dmortized Cost. The Company first assesses whether impairment exiats
individually for financial assets that are individually significant, and individually or collectively
for financial assets thet are not individually significant. If the Company determines thet no

S



210

objective evidence of impairmgnt exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significent or not, the asset s included in & group of financial assets with sirailar credit rizk
characteristics and that group of financial assets is collectively assessed for impairment. Assets
that are individualiy assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues ta
he, recognized are no longer includad in a collestive assessment of impairment,

Ths amount of any Impairment loss identified is measured as the difference between the seset’s

carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expectad

credit losses that have not yst been incurred). The present valua of the astimated fiture cash flows
is disoounted at the financial asget’s original BIR,

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the vse of an allowance account and the Joss
is recognized in the staterent of profit or loss. Interest income to be accrued on the reduced

carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the futwre cash flows for

the purpose of measuring the impairmert toss, Loans together with the associated aliowance are
written off when there is no realistic prospect of futurs recovery and gl collateral has been
reatized or has besn transfirred to the Company. -1, in a subsequent year, the amount of the
estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an svent oceurring after the

gnized, the previously recognized inpairment loss {8 ingreased or reduced by

impairment was reco
d, the recovery is credited to

adjusting the allowance account. If o write-pif is later recovers
interest expense in profit or loss.

AFS fpvestments. For AFS financiel ssseis, the Clompany assesses st sach reporting dats whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or & group of investments is impaired,

In the case of debt instruments classified as AFS, the impairment is assessed based oo the same
criteria as financial essets carried at amortized cost. However, the amount recorded for
impairment is the cumulative loss measwed a3 the difference between the amortized cost and the
current fair valug, less any impairment loss on that jnvestment previously recognized in profit or

loss.

Euture interest income continues to be accrued based on the reducsd carrying amount of the asset,
using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
tmpairment loss. The interest is recorded as part of interest meome, If, in a subsequent year, the
fair value of a dabt instrument invreases and the inoreese can be objectively related to an event
vecurring after the impairment loss was recognized in profit or loss, the impaioment loss is

reversed through profit or loss.

Where the fransaction price in a non-active market is difforeut from the fuir

*Day I Difference’.
& same nstrament or based ona

value based on other observable current market iransactions in th
vajuation technique whose variables include only data from observable market, the Company
recognizes the difference between the fransaction price and fair value (a ‘Day 1 difference’) in
profit or loss uniess it qualifies for recoguition as some other type of asset. In cases where
unobserveble daia is used, the difference between the transaction price and model value i§
recognized in profit or loss only when the inpuis becoms observable or when the instrument is
derecognized. For each transaction, the Company determines the sppropriate method of

recognizing the ‘Day 1 difference’ amount.

Offsetting of Fipangial Instruments

Finanoial assets and financial Habilities are offset and the net amount 15 reported in the statoment
of finaucial position if there is a cwrrently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounis
nnd there is an intention to settle on & net basis, or to reatize {he assets apd satiie the labilities
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simultaneously. The Cam’[‘mﬁy nssessas that it has a currently enforcsable right of offset if the
right is not contingent on a future sverd, and is legnily enforceable in the normal course of
businest, svent of default, and event of insolvency or bankruptoy of the Company and all of the

counterparties

Cash and Cash Eguivalents ‘
Cash includes cash on hend and in banks, Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid

_investments that ars readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three

months or Jess from dates of placement and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value,

Other Current Assets

Other cument assets includes prepaid taxes which represents prior ysar's sxcess (ax credits from
taxes withheld which are deductible from the Company’s income tax payable, and input value-

added tax (VAT).

Equity

Caplital stock i measured at par vaiue for all shares issued, Increriental costs incurred directly,
atiributable to the issuance of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction from progeeds, net of
tax. Proceeds and/or fair value of considerations received in excess of par value are recognized as

adiitional paid-in capital.

Revenus

Revenue is recogaized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will fow to the
Company and the amount can be reliably measured, regardless of when the paymant is being
made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, faking
inito account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty. The Compary
asgesses ils revenue arrangements against specific oriteria in arder to determine if i is acting as
principal or agent, ‘The Companty hus concluded that it is scting 85 & prineipal in all itz revernue
srrengements, The following specific recognition criteria must also be met befors revenue is

recognized:

et
g
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Jnterest Income. Revenus is recognized as the intersst acerues, taking into apeount the sffective
vield on the agset.

Exercise Fees, Revenue Is recognized upon conversion of PDRs to camman shares.

Expenses _
Expenses presented a5 “Opérating expenses” account in the statements of comprehensive incoms

are recognized a3 inswred.

Taxes
Current Jncome Tes, Current income tax sssets and liabilitiss for the current pericd are measured |

at the amount sxpected ro be recovered from or paid to the texation authorities, The fax rafes and
tux laws used to computs the amount are those that are enacted or substzantiaily enacted at

reporiing date.

y in equity is recogaized in equity and not

Curpent income tax relating to items recognized direct]
ken in the tax returns with respact

in profit or loss, Management perindically evaluates positions ta
to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to mie

provisions whers appropriate.

rpretation and estabiishes

e



-1z-

Deferred Income Tax. Deferred incoms tax is provided using the batanue sheet liability method
on all ternporery differences at reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and

their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reparting date.

Deferrad income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward
henefits of excess minimum corporate income tax (MCIT} over regular corporete income tax
(RCIT) and net uperating lass carryover (NOLCO}, to the extent that it is probable that taxable
income will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward
benefits of excass MCIT over RCIT and NOLCO can be utilized except:

s where the deforred income tax esset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting income ner

texable profit or loss; and

" in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
gésgoiates and interest in joint arrangements, deferred income tax assets are recognized oxly to
the sxtent that it is probable that the temporary differences will revarse in the foresseable
future and taxable income will be available against which the temporary differences can be

utilized.

Ths carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed et each reporting date and reduce
 to the extent that it'is no longer probeble that sufficient taxabls profic will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred income tax assets to be utilized, Unreepgnized deferred mcome tax assets
are renssessed at each reporting dute and are recognized to the sxtent that it has become probable

that future taxable profit will allow the deferred income tex #ssets to be reuovered.

Deforred income tax lishilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

«  Whare the deferred income tex Hability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an
asset or Hability in & transaction that is not & business combination and, at the tims of the
tranaaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

» In respect of taxuble temporary differences associnted with investments in subsidiaries,
asswciates and interests in joint vertures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences oan be controlied and it Is prohable that the temporary differences will not reverse

in the foreseeable future,

Deferred income tax agssts and Liabilities are measured at the 18x rates applicabie to the year whon
thre asset is realized or the liahility iz settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that [rave begn to be
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred income tax assets and Habilities are offsst If a legelly enfurceable right exists to offset
curront tax, assets against eurrent tax Habilitics and the deferred income taxes relafe to the sams

taxable enfity and the seme taxation authority.

Income tax relating to OCI is recognized in OCI section of the statements of comprebensive
income, _ ‘

ot of the amouni of VAT. The net emount of

VAT, Revenue, expenses and assets are recognized n
thority i included as part of “Other current

VAT recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation au

A
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aszets” or “Accounts payable and other current liabilittes” accounts in the statements of financial

position.

Eamines Per Share (EPS
Basic EPS amounts are caleulated by dividing net income for the yeér by the weighted average

mimber of ordinary shares outstanding durtng the year. The Company has no dilutive potential
common shares outstanding, therefore, basic EPS is the same as diluted EPS,

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or construetive) where,
as a result of a past svent, it is probable that an outflow of asssts embadying seonomic benofits will
be required to seftle the obligation snd a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is materinl, provisions are defermined by
discounting the expseted future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value af money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where
discounting is used, the incrgasesin the provision due to the passuge of time is recognized as interest
expense, Whers the Company expects & provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is
recognized 1S & separate asset but only when the receipt of the reimbursement i5 virtually certain.

Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the finanoial statements. These ars disslosed in the

notes to financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying
ecoromic benefits is remofe. Confingent assets are not revognized in the financial statements but
are disciosed in the notes to fiancial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Events after the Reporting Date ‘
’s pogition at the

Post year-end events that provide additiona] information about the Company
reporting date {adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements, Post year-end events
thet are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to financial statements when materinl,

Summary of Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Agsumyrions

The preparation of the financial statements in compliance with PFRS requires the Compeny to
make cstimates and assurnptions that affect tha reparted amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in ontcomes thet require & material adjustment to the carrying amount of

assets or lisbilities affected in firture periods.

Estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be determinable under the

circumstances.

The key estimates and assumptions concerning the futnre and other key sourses of sstimation

uncertginty at reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing & material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of assets and labil
Company based its assumptions and _
statements were prepared. Existing oircumstancss an
however, may change due to market changes or sircumsiaices arising
Company. Such changes are reflected In the assumptions when these ocour.

ities within the next financial year, are discussed below, The
estimates on parampeters available whenp the financial

d assumptions about future developments
beyond the control of the

e A
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. Estimating Reallzability
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Determining Fair Vaive of AFS Frvestment. The Company has po intention of selling its AF3
investment in the near term., It Is being held indefinitely and may be sold in Tesponse to liguidity

requiremnenty or changes in market condition.

The Company carries AFS investment st fair value, Since AFS investment cannot be derived
Fom active markets, the fair value is determined using sppropriate valuation technique, which is
discounted cash flow methodelogy. The inputs to the model are taken. from observable markets
where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment iz required in establishing fair

velue.

The faiy vaiue of AFS investment is discussed it Note 14.

Impairment of AFS Investment. The Compeny follows the guidance of FAS 39 tp determine when
an availabie-for-sale investment is impaired. Judgment by management is required in the
estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining if allowance s
yequired. Such sstimates are based on assumptions.abeyt anumber of factors and actual results
may differ, Allowance may be based on any deterioration in the internal rating of the investment
since it was asquired. These intetnal ratings take infto consideration factors such as any
detarioration in risl, indusiry, and the financial health and hear-term business outinok of the
issuer, as well as identifisd structural weaknesses or deterioration in pash flows,

There was no provision for impdirment losses in 2015 and 2014. The carrying value of AFS
investment amounted to 220.81 million and $21.76 miliion as at December 31, 2015 and 2014,

respectively (see Nate 7).
of Deferred Income Tex Asgets. The Company’s pasessment on the
recognition of deferred income tax asssts on nondeductible temporary ifferences and

carryforward benefits of NOLCQ and exoess MOCIT is based upon the likely timing and level of
forscasted taxable meome in the subsequent pariods, This forecast i3 bused on the Company’s

fitture expectations on revenus and expenses,

The Company did not recognize deferrad income tax assets gmounting to 20.96 million and
R0.87 million as at Decermber 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively as management beileves that
sufficient taxable profit will not be avallable egainst which the deductible tamporary differances

can be uiilizad (see Note 11).

Philippine Deposit Recaipts

On Tuly 30, 2007 and August 21, 2007, the Company iszued 822,115,000 and 123,317,000 PDRs
relating to GMA sharss, respectively. Total number of issued PDRs is 945,432,000 for a

consideration of 28,50 per share or B8,036,172,000.

upon peyment of the exercise price and subject to certain other
wonditions, the defivery of one GMMA share or the sale of and delivery of the procesds of such sale
of one GMA, shars. The Company remains to be the registered owner of the GMA shares coversd
by the PDRa. The Company alse retsins the voting rights over the GMA shares.

Each PDR graats the holders,

nership restrictions on shares of corporations engaged i
ansfer of shares to persons other than Philippins nationals,
, 2007, and the same may be exercised at any time
butions in respect of GMA sharss received

The GMA shares are still subject to-ow
mass media and GMA may reject the i
The PDRs were listed in the PSE on July 30
from spid date. Any cash dividends or other cash distri

[T
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by the Company shall be applied towerd the operating expenses of the Company for the current
and preceding yeers, A further amount equal to the aperating expenses in the preceding year shall
b sel aside to meet operating or other expenses for the succeeding years. Any amount in excess
of the rggregate of the operating expenses paid and the operating fund for such period shall be
distributed to PDR holders pro-rata on the first business day after such cash dividends are received

by the Company.
£0.05 (VAT inclusive) per share shali be paid by

“Exarcise fees” sccount in the statements of
20,41 miliion and nil in 2015, 2014 and

Upon exercise of the PDRs, an exercise prics of
the PDR holders. The exereise price is shown as
profit ar logs. Exercise fees amounted to #0.09 million,

2013, respectively.

Immediately prior to the closing of the PDR offering and additional issuances described above,
OMA, to which the Company is affilieted, transferred 945,432,000 GMA shares to the Comipany
in relation to which the PDRs wers fssued. For as long as the PDRs are not exercised, the sharss
underlying the PDRs will continue to be registered in the name of, and éwned'by the Company,
end all rights pertaining to these shares, including voting rights, shall be exercised by the
Compeny. The cbligations of the Company to deliver the GMA. shares on exercise of the right
contained in the PDRs are secured by the Pledge of Shares in faver of the Pledge Trustee acting an

behalf of each holder of & PDR over the GIVIA shares,

At any time after the PDR offering, a shareholder may, at his option and from tims to time, dsliver
ghares to the Company in exchange for an equal sumber of PDRs. The exchange is based on
prevailing traded valus of GMA shares at the time of transaction with the corresponding FDR
option price.

rights to receive the cash flows from its investment
in GMA and assumes a confractual obligation to pay those pash flows to the PDR holders, net of
operating expenses (2 “pass-through” arrangement), The “pass-through™ test is met because the
Company (a) has no obligation to the PDR holders urless it collects equivalent ameunts from fis
investment in GMA, (b) is contractually prohibited from selfing or pledging its investment in
GMA other than as security to the PDR holdess for the obligation to pay the cash flows, and

(¢} has an obligation to remit any sash Hows from the investment in GILA to the PDR holders

without maserial deiay.

As discussed above, the Company retaing the

Under the “pass-through® test, the Compauy is deemed to have transferred substantially the risks
and rewards of its lnvestment in GMA. Aceordingly, the investment in GMA and the labilities
celated tu the issuance of the PIRs are not recognized by the Company.

The following are the detaiis and movements of the PDRs and the underlying GMA shares for the
years ended December 31 -

PDRs . Number of Bhares
2015 2014 20145 2014
B7,210,932,500 7 288,833,300 548,345,000 §57,509,800

Balance at begioning of yeer

Exercise of FDRs (16,965,180}

(77,900,800) (1,995,901 (9,164,800
Balanice at end of year B7,153,967,350 £7.710,932,500 846,349,100

B48,3435,000

lders of 20.25 per shares,

On Mareh 30, 20185, the Company approved a cash distribution to PDR ho
ders of record

in relation to dividends declared by GMA, totaiing to ¥211.73 miition to all sharehol
as at April 24, 2013,

I
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On Apri} 17, 2015, the BOD approved a resolution fo pass on the entirs amoﬁnt of the cash

dividends received from GMA without deducting the Company’s 2015 projected operating
sxpenses. Such sxpenses shall be covered by the interest incame from the Campany's cash and

cesh equivalents and AFS mvestment.

" The cash dividends were remitted to PDR holders on May 19, 20145,

The Company retains the right to receive cash flows from its investments iu GMA but it also
assumes & confractual obligation to pay those cash flows to the PDR holders which 3 considered a
“nagy-through” arrangement. Thus, the Company did not recognize the dividend income received

from GMA arising from the acquisition and holding of the underlying shares of GMA in its
financial statements.

As disoussed in Note 16, on April 8, 2016, the BOD approved a cash distribution to PDR holders
in relation to dividends declared by GMA. o

Cash gnd Cash Bequivalents

155 2014
Cash on hend and in banks B722,018 71,240,820
Short-team deposits 26,124,523 25,424 401

B26,846,541 276,663,221

it rates, Shorterm deposiis are mads for

Cash in banks earn interest af the respective bank depos
immediate cash requirements of the

varying periods of up fo thres months depending on the
Company, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

Interest income earned from cash in banks and short-term deposits amounted to #0.92 miltion,
21,17 million, and 8121 miliion in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively,

Available-for-Sale Investment

-yaar UBP Tier Note with a face value of

In 2014, the Company purchased at par & ten
‘The taturity date of this note is an

221.00 million bearing a fixed interest rate of 5.38%.
February 20, 2025,

Tnterest income sarned on the UBP Tier Mote amounted to $1 13 million gnd 20,12 million in
20615 and 2014, respectively. :

The movement in AFS investment is as follows:

N 2015 2014
Helanoe at beginning of year ¥11,759,216 ‘ B
Additions : - 21,000,000
Change in fair valus {DA3,653) 758,216
Tiatance ab snd of year T B20,805,523 £21,759,216

TAAREA AT
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Movement of net unrealized gain on AFS investment is as follows:

‘ . 2015 2014
Balance st beginning of year P3551,451 : P
Giain (loss) due to changes in fair value of AFS '
investment (953,603) 758,216
Tax effect of the changes in fair values 227,765 (227,765}
Balance at end of year (F194,477) #531,451
8. Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities
2015 2014
Agoounts payable F8.H81 R87,926
Accrued sxpenses; :
Drofessional and trust-fees 350,080 225,910
Others 2,261 1,760
Deferred output VAT 2,018 4,284
Lividends payable ' 2,418 2,014
‘ B366,179 Pr41.184

Acoounts payable and accrued expenses are noninterest-bearing and are normelly settled within
the next financial year. Acorued expenses represent audit fees, retainer fees and miscellansous

expenses,

Eguity
g, Capital Stock

Ths Company hes 10,000 authorized, subseribed and issuad common shares with B10.00 par

value per shars.
The following summarizes the information on the Compary’s ra_gisiraﬁcﬁ of securitiss with
the SEC as required by Securities Repulation Code Rule 68, As Amended {2011}

Aythorized Number
Number of Tssued Issus/
Date of SEC Approval of Shares Shares Offer Price
i 845,432,000 945,432,000 » £8.50

Tuly 30, 2067

Retained Barnings

Cenpany’s deoleration end digtribution of cagh

On Meareh 30, 2015, the BOD approved the
stockholders of record as at December 31, 20 14,

dividends amounting to 80.50 million to all

On April 8, 2016, cash dividends amounting to £0.60 million was daclared by the BOD

(see Note 16),

T RETE R
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10. Operating Expenses

2015 2014 2013
Listing fees B576,046 - PaY{,295 B799,109
Professional fees 475,291 280,085 479,835
Taxes and licenses 28,382 42,788 31,168
Others 22,694 31,858 3;,982
£1,094,413 B1,045,026 P1,344.184
11, Income Taxes
Current Incgme Tax : ‘ '
The components of the Company’s provision for current income tax are &s follows:
S ok 2015 2014 2013 -

Fitial tax interast P410,572 P248,563 - B241,099
MCIT 1,782, 8,183 -
' 412,354 B256 746 £241,059

The reconciliation of the provision for income tax compuied at stalutory income tax rate and the
provision for income tax as shown ia the statoments of somprehenstve income is summarized as

Tollows:
: 2015 2014 2013
Income tzx computed at statutory ‘
income fax rate P314,264 CB182,080 841,607
Income tax effest of:
Interast income subjected to
final tax {205,285} (124,282) (120,549)
Movement in umrecognized :
deferrad income tex assets 36,306 {181,061) 320,965
i Expired NOLCO and MCIT 267,065 380,009 76,2590
412,354 - P25, 746 £241,009
Deferved Ingome Tax o
The components of unresognized deferred incume tax assets arc 45 follows:
: 2815 2014
NOLCO BE95,013 BE506,538
Unrealized lose on AFS investnent 58,343 -
MCIT ' 9,965 12,634
- - B453,921 BR59,272

I
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As at December 31, 2015, NOLCO and MCIT that can be clzimed as deduction from future
taxable income and RCIT due, respectively, are as follows:

Date Paid/Incumred  Carryforward Benefit Up To NOLCO MICIT
December 31, 2013 December 31, 2016 $£1,344,184 B
December 31, 2014  December 31, 2017 . : 635,883 8,183
Decerber 31, 2015 December 31,2018 1,005,310 1,782
B) 085377 B0,565
The movements in NOLCO and MCIT follow:
2018 2014
NOLCO:
Balance at beginning of year ¥2,855.461 BI,486,273
Additions L 1,005,310 635,883
- Expired NOLCO PR (875,394 (1,266,695
Balenge at end gf year ™ . B2.O8837T B8] 855,461
MCIT; ‘
Balence at beginning of year . B12,634 84,451
Additions 1,782 8,183
Eapired MCIT (4,451) -
Balance at end of year £9,965 B12.634

In 2015, deferred inoome tax asset amounting to B6.23 million was partially recognized to offsst
ngainst deferred income tax liability of the same amount arising fram anrealized gain on AFS
investment, As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, deferred incoma tax Hability emounting ta

nil and £0.23 million, respectively, is presanted under aguity in the statsments of financial

position,

12. Related Party Disclosures

’ Parties are congidered to be related if one party has the ability, directly and indirectly, to control
the cther party or exercise sighificant influsnce over the other party in making financial and
operating decisions, Parties are also considerad to be related if they are subject to comman

contral.

Terms and Conditions Qf Transactions with Related Partieg

Transactions with related parties have been enterad into af terms no less favorable than could have
been abtained if the transactions were entered into with unrelated parties. The Company’s
finaneial statements include the following amounts resulting from the transactions with relatert

parties as at December 31:

Amount/Volome Cutstanding
{ntegory Year  of Transuetions Pryeble Terms Condilions
Shareholdery :
Portion of proceeds retained 2013 B 247,271,600  Upon demand, Ungecured
from issuance of FDEs 2014 - 47,271,600 notinierest-bearing
Balo, Gozon, Blms Law Flm 2013 i 00,000 Upon demend, Unsacured
. 2014 141,515 80,508 nonintarest-bearing

TR R
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The outstanding baiance of “Due to shareholders” sccount in the statements of financia! position
partains to B0.05 per PDR portion of the eriginal procoeds retained by the Company, as the FDR
Issuer, in consideration for the rights granted under the PDRs, This amotnt witl be used for the
liquidation of expenses relatsd to the issnance of the PDRs. Any excess is tu be remittad to the

selling shareholders,

The Company's kay management personnel are employed by GMA and no part of their salaries
was allocated to the Company,

13

pryments as at December 31:

Tinancial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Company's principal financial instruments inchude cesh and cash equivatents and AFS
investment. The main purpose of these financial instruments s to finance the Company’s
operations. The Company has other financial assets and labilities such as accounts recsivable,
accounts payable and other current Hebilities (excluding statutory payables) and-dus to
sharehoiders, which arise directly from its operstiops. =

The main risks arising from the Compauy’s financial statements are as follows:

= Liguldity risk. Liquidity risk arises from the passibility that the Company may encourter
- difficulties in ralsing funds to meet commitments from financizl ingtruments,

o Interest rofe risk. Fixed rate financis) Ingtrament is subject to fuir velue inferest rate risk,

s Credit visk, Credit risk arises from default of the counterparty,

The BOD reviews and approves the Company’s objectives and policies,

Liguidity Risk . _ o
iquidity management is to ensure that the Company hes sufficient

The Company’s objective in [
liguidity tc mest obligations under normel and advarse circurnstances and is able to take

advantage of lnvestmert opportunities as they arise.

i and cash equivalents from operations

term liguidity needs, The Compaay
fts to broaden the

The Company manages its liquidity risk by using its cas
and interest incoms from AFS investment to meet its short-
likewise regularly evalugtes other finaucing instruments snd arrangeme

Company’s range of finencing sources.

Company’s financial assets used for

The table below summarizes the maturify profile of the
ities based on contractual undiscounted

liguidity risk management purposes and financial Habil

Al st Dacember 31, 2015 -

Muare then
On Demgnd 3 to 12 Months I yenr Total
Finuncini Assats
Cash mnd cesh squivalents B26,846,541 P . 26,846,541
Arcounts recefvable - 190,135 9,380 14,518
AFS investment - - 28,206,396 28.2416,386
16,846,541 P103,135 £28,215.776 BA45,253 452
Finnneit! Linbilities
Acoounts payable and other corrent _
iipbilities? #362,561 B . B 8363,561
Iiue to shareholders _ 47,271,600 ~ e 47,271,600
B47,635,161 oo B 47,635,161

+Exrludding dafsrred ouput VAT amounting 42 20,818 o5 ar Doommher 31, 2013,

TR



As gl December 31, 2014
More than

On Demand 3 tp 12 Months | oyar Taotal
Finnneial Agsets
Cash gnd sash equivalents B36,665,221 P- Fn 26,665,321
Accounis receivable 183,387 - 183,187
AFS inyestment — - 28,315,541 28,515,941

P26,665,221 183,387 B28,513,941 #35,364,549
Finoaneial Linbilitins :
Arcounts peysble and o\hier current

Habiities™ . 216,910 B B $236,910

Due to shargholders 47,271,600 - — 47,271,600

47,308,510 £ ' B 247,508,510

*Ercluding deferved auiput VAT amounting to £4,284 us at December 31, 2014,

[nterest Rate Risk Vi
The Company's exposurs to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the

Company's AFS investment which are subject to fair value interest rafo rigk. -

Foair Value Interest Rate Risk, Fixed rate financial instruments are subjectto this risk. The
Company's AFS investment eaxns interest ot & fixed rate of 5.3 8% throughout the period of
investment, The following table below demonstrates the sensitivity of fair value changes due to
possible change in intersst rates with all ather veriables held congtant (through the impaet op other

comprelisnsive fncome).

Incresse
{Pecresse) in Effsct on Equity
: Bagis Points 2015 2014
AFS investment &) (PO31,494) {PR04,227)
{50 577,078 843,111

Credit Risk

Credit risk arising from cash and cash equivalents and AFS investment, the Company’s expasurs
to credit risk arises from defailt of the counterparty, with 8 maximum eXposure squal to the
caiTying amount of the instruments. Tt is the Company’s policy to enier into transactions with &
diversity of ereditworthy parties to mitigate any significant concentration of credit risk. The
Compeny has an internel mechanism o monitor the granting of credit gnd mianagement of credit
exposures. The Company has made provisions, whers necessary, for potential losses on credits

extended, The Company does not require any collateral for its finanoial assets,

Ag at December 31, 2015 angd 2014, the financial assets are generally viewed by mansgement as
good and collectible considering the credit history of the counterparties. Past due or impsired
finnncial assets are very minimal in relation to the Company’s tofal financial asssta, :

Credit Quality of Finageigl Assets
is meneged by the Company using high grade and standard

The credit quality of financial assets |
grade as internal credit ratings.

High Grada. This pertains o a counterparty who is not expecte:& by the Company to default %n
settling its obligations, thus, credit risk exposure is mintmal, This normally includes large prime

financis! institutions and refatad parties,

Syandard Grade. Other financial sssets not classified as high grade are inchucled in this category.

IR
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The Comparny classified its cash and cash equivalents (excluding cash on hand) and AFS
investment as high grade financial assets as at December 31, 2015 and 2014

Capital Managermesnt

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to-onsure that it maintains & strotg
credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholder

value.
The Company managss its capital structure and makes adjustinents to if, in the light of changes in

economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may gdjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, payoff existing debts, return capital fo shareholders or issue

new shares,

No changes weee made in the objectives, policies or processes for the three years ended
Drecember 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013,

“The Comparty's tepital management is undertaken by GMA. The Company’s capital inciudes the

tatal equity, before other comprehensive income, which amounted to £0,78 millfon and
£0.64 million as at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

13.

Hinancial Assets and Liabilities ‘

The following methods and assurptions are used to estimat the fair value af each financial

instrisment for which it is practicable to estimate such velue:

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Accounts Receivable, Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities

(excluding Stetutory Pavables). Due to Shareholders and Dividends Pavable
The carrying amounts of these financial nstruments approximate their fair valugs due to the short-

term maturities of thess financial nstruments.

AFS Investment
The estimated fair value of AFS debt investment is based on tie discounted values of future cagh
flows. The discount rates used are bused on the spot yield eurve caleulated from the markat yields

plus counterparty's credit spread, The fair value is under jevel 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

The following tuble below demonstrates the sensitivity of credit spread (through the impact on
other comprehensive income).

Incroase
(Decrease) in Effect on Bguity
Basis Points 2015 2014
50 ®592,292) (655,026)

AFS iﬁv.estment ‘
(50} 614,393 681,848

T TRAAOIMANE
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15, RosieMiluted Karnings (Loss) Per Share Computation

Besic/diluted EPS Is computed as follows:

2015 2014 2013
Met income attributable to equity '
holders {a) B635,193 R350,186 (B379,790}
Common shares issued at
beginning and and of year (b) 10,000 14,000 10,000
Rasic/diluted enrnings (loss) per '
share (a/B) P63.852 8315.02 CE37.98)

. The Compeny has no dilutive potential comrnon shares cutstanding therefore basic EPS {5 same 63

diluted EPS.

[ iy
e

16. Events affer the Reporfing Date

On April 8, 2016, the Company’s BOD approved a cash distribution to PDR holders of
ared by GMA 1o &ll sharefiolders of record as at Aprii 25, 2016

share, in relation to dividends decl
and will be paid on May 17, 2018,

.40 per

On the same date, the BOD approved a resulution to pass on the entire amount of the cash
dividends received from GMA without dedncting its operating expenses and approved the use of
the Interest income from tis cash and cash equivalents and AFS investment to cover for these

expenses,

Further, the BOD approved the Company’s declaration and distribution of cash dividends
amourting to 20.60 million to all stockholders of record as at April 29, 20186,

17. Snpplemeniary Information Required by Revenue Regulations (RR) 15-2410

EBR 152010

The Company reparted and/or pai& the following types of taxes in 2015

Yalue added Tax (VAT)

The Company’s sales are subject to output VAT while its purchases from other VAT-registered
individuals or corparations are subject to input VAT, The VAT rate is 12.0%.

g, Net sales/recmipts and output VAT declared in the Company’s VAT returns

The Company’s sales that are subject to autpizt VAT are reported under “Exercise fee”

seeount in the staternent of comprahensive income.

The Company’s taxab
VAT of 212,358,

fe sales from services amounted to R102,987 with corresponding output

ORI
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b, Input VAT
Balance at Jepuary 1 F347,686
Current year's domestic purchases for services 31,671
Total input VAT 379,357
Applizd against output VAT (12,358)
366,205

Ralance at December 31

{ither Taxes and Licenses

All other local and: national taxes paid for the year ended December 31, 2015 constst of:

Lacel taxes and license fees 210,882
Registration fees 500
B20,382

Witkholding Taxes
Withholding taxes pald andfor withhsld fer the year ended December 31, 2015 consist of!

Final withholding tax £27,458,037
Expanded withholding tax 11,641
#27,465,678
Tax Assessments snd Cases .
esaments and cases with the

Ag at Degember 31, 2015, the ‘Company has ne ongoing 1ax AE

Hureau of Joternal Revenue (BIR). 11
the administration of the BIR as at December 31, 2015,

TR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
GMA Holdings, Inc.

513 Tower One, One MeKinley Place

New Global Bonifacio City

Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the financial Statéients of
GMA. Holdings, Inc. as at December 31, 2015 and 2014 arith foresch of the thres years in the pericd
ended December 31, 2015 inciuded in this Form [7-A, and have issusd our report thereon dated

Agril § 2016, Our audits were made for the purposs of forming an opinion on the basic financial
statetments taken s & whole. The scheduies listed in the Index fo Financie! Statements and
Supplementary Schedules are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Theseschedules are
presented for purposes of complying with Securities Regulation Code Rula 68, As Amended (2011),
and are not part of the basic financlal statements. These schedules have been subjected to ths auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic finencial staternents and, in our opinior, fairly state, in all
rmaterial respects, the information required to be set forth therein in relation to the basic financial

statements taken as a whole.

SYCIP GORRES YELAYO & CO.

Mariecris N, Barbago

Partner

0P A Certificate No. 87101

SRC Accreditation No. 1513-A (Group A),
October 6, 2015, valid until Ocdtober 5, 2018

Tax Identification No. 202-065-716

BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-108-20135,
March 4, 2015, valid until March 3, 2018

PTR No. 5321611, Januvary 4, 2016, Makati City

April 8, 2016

.
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SCHEDULES AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2018

Snpplaméntal Schedules Required by Annex 68-E

A. Fmancial Asssts

B. Amounts Recelvable from Directors, Officers, Employess, Reieted Parties
and Principal Stockholders (Other Than Related Parties)

¢, Amounts of Receivables and Paysbie fromy/to Related Parties which are
Eliminated during Consolidation Process of Financiel Stetements

D. Imangible Assets - Other Assels

E. Long-term Debf

F, Indebtednessto Related Parties (Long-term Loans from Reluted Parties)

. Guarantess of Securities of Other Issuers

H. Capital Stock

Schadile of All the Effecttve Btandards and Interpretations
Recenciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration

Schedule of Financial Ratios -

Attachad

Notappiicable

ot applicable

Mot applizeble
Nt applicable
Nat applicable
Not applicable
Attached
Alttached
Atrachud

Attached



GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

1. SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULES REQUIRED BY ANNEX. 68-F
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2015

Scheduls A. Financial Assets

Amuount shown in
the staternents of  Income rece{ved

Name of issutng entity and aasociation of sach issue finenwial position and accrued
Crsh and cash equjvalonts :

Cash on Jund P5,000 P

Cash in banks:

Unton Bank of the Philippines 528,625 7,828

Peutachi Benk i 103,068 1,401

Banco De Cro . 85,325 130

722,018 9,358

Cash eguivalents ~{Inigapital, Inc. . 26,124,523 914,744

- R24,846,541 204,107

Avafinble-for-sale inveytment B20,805,523 B1,128,750

Schedule B. Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Lmployees, Related Parties and
Principat Stockholders (Other Than Related Parties)

Dedusiions
Name and Balanse ox at - Amaounl Amount Balanee 65 ol
deslpnation Janunry 1, 2015 Additions  poliscted  writien off Currant  Noooument Degpmbar 37, 2015

Not Appiicabie: The Company has no receivabie from directors, officer, employess, related parties and
principal stockholders as at December 31, 2015,

Schedule C. Amounts of Receivables and Payable from/to Related Parties which are Eliminated
during Consclidation Process of Finnncial Statements

Dedugiions
Narnz and Balnpee a5 at Amount Armbngt : Ralense as #i
degignation Jemoary 1, 2015 Additions vollected  writtan off  Current  Noncutreri Tegember 31, 2015

Not Applicable: The Compeny hes no receivabie from/payzble to related parties which are
consolidated as ot December 31, 2015,

Schedule . Intangible Assets - Other Assets

Other changes:
Beginning (Charged 1o cost . gdditions .
Deseription balance  Additions at cost and expensss (deductions) Ending balance

Nut Applicsble: The Company has o iptangible asset a8 at Devember 31, 2015,




Schadule E, Long-term Debt

Amount Amount shown under caption Amount shown under

Title of issue and type of authorized  “Current portion of long term  caption “Leng-term debt”
obligdtion by indenture  debt™ in related balance sheet in related balance sheet

Mot Applicable; The Com pany has ne lung-term debt as at December 31, 2015,

Sehedule ¥, Indebtedness to Related Parties (Long-term Loans from Related Purties)

Dalance at Balance at

MNameg of related party January 1, 2015 Deoember 31, 2015

Not Apolicable; The Compeny has no indebtedness to a related periy as af December 31, 2015,

Schedule G, Guarantess of Securities of Cther Issoers

Nams of issuing entity of Title of i5sue of
Securities guarantasd by the each olassof  Total amotnt Ampunt pwned by :
securities  guarantsed and  person for which the Nature of

Compeny for which this

stetement is filed ‘statement is filed gunrantee

_ pugranteed outstanding

. Not Applicable: The Company hes no guarentees of securities of other issvers asat
December 31, 2015,

Sehedunte H. Capital Stock

“Number of Number
shares Issued of shares
and  resarved for
‘putstanding options, -
‘2§ SHOWR warrants, | Mumbsr

Number underrelated  conversion of sheres held Directars,

of sheres  balance sheet and othar by related  officars, and
Title of issue authorized caption righis parlies  employess Others
Common 16,000 - 10,600 - -~ 8,991 5




GMA BOLDINGS, INC.

11 SCHEDULE OF ALL THE EFFECTIVE STANDARDS AND
- INTERPRETATIONS AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2015

meewurk for the Pmpnmhnn and Prosenintion of Finanelai
Statemants Y
Conceptuat Framework Phase A1 Objectives nnd quatitative :
charecter{stics '
PFRSs Practice Statement Monagement Commepiary "
Philippiue Finaneial Reporting Btandoerds
PERS I | Firsi-time Adoption of Philippine Financlal Reparung v J
{Revised) Sandards
Amendments 10 FFRS 1 and PAS 27: Cost of an
Investment In a Subsidlery, Jointly Contralied Entity or (=« J
o Associate
Amendments to PFRS 1: Addmonal Exemptiong for J ‘ y
First-time Adopters
Amesdmen! to PFRS 1 Limited Exemption frem
Comperative FERE 7 Disclosures f'ur First-time v : J
Adopters
Amsndments to PFRS 1: Severe Hypermﬂannn and / sy
Removal of Fixed Date for First-time Adopters
Amendments to PFRS ©: Government Loans W "
Amendments to PFRS 1; Borrowing Costs " v
Amendment to PFRE 14 Meaning of Effective PFREs v v
PFRS 2 Bhare-hased Payment ' v v
Amendments to PERE 2 Vesting Conditions and v J
Cancelintions _
Amendments to FFRS 2: Group Cash-settied Share- N y
pased Payment Transeetions:
Amsndmant ie PFRS 2; Definltion of Vesting v v
Condition :
PFRS 3 Business Combinations V v
(Revised) 14 coniment fo PFRS 3: Accounting for Crmtmgent y /
Cansideration in 4 Busingss Combination .
Amendiment to PFRS 3: Scope Exceptions For Joint J s
AlTRNZEMIENE
PFRS 4 Insuranee Contracts v vy
Amendmests to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Fivanclal / - J
Guerentee Copiragls
PFRE S Nop-current Assets Held for Sals and Discontinued ¥ Y,
Operations ]




Amcndments to PFRS 5! Cimnges in Meihuds csf

Disposals*

ARERE:
E

.“ f&

1‘r-

i ti tﬂ

Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources

Finaneial Instruments: Disclosurag

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS8 7: Reclassification
of Finaneizl Assets

Amendments to PAS 29 and PFRS 7: Reclagsification
of Financial Assets - Effective Dats and Transition

Amendments to BERS F: Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments

Amendments o FFRS 7: Diselnsures - Trmsfers of
Finencial Asseis

Amendrnents to PFRS 7: Disclasures - Gffsetting
Financial Assels end Financial Lighilities

Amendments tn PFRE 7: Mandutory Effective Date of
FERS 9 and Transition Disclosures

Amendments 1o PFRS 7: Disclosures - Servicing
Contracts®

Mot Barly Adoptad

Amendments to PFRS 7: Applicability of the
Amendments to PFRS 7 to Condensed Interim

Finatwial Statements®

Nol Early Adopted

PFRS §

Operating Segmenls

Amendments to PERS & Aggregation of Operating
Segments and Resonciliation of the Total of the
Reportebie Ssgments’ Assats to ths Entity’s Assels

PFRE 9

Finangiel Instruments*

Not Barly Adopted

Amendments 1o PFRS 2: Mandatery Effective Date of
PFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures™

Mat Early Adopted

Amendments E’FRS‘S?: Hedge accounting and -
pmendments W FFRS © and PAS 39 (2013 version}*

Not Eatly Adopted |

Amendments to PFRE 9 (2014 version]*

Mot Barly Adopted

PERE 1D

Copsolidated Financial Statements

Amendments to FFRE 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 27:

{Investment Entifies

Amendments to PEES 10 and PAS 28: Sale or
Contribution of Assets between tn Investor and iis
Associite or Joint Venture® )

Not Early Adopied

Amentiments to PFRS 10 snd PA S 28: Applying the
Congolidation Bxceptien®

Not Eerly Adopted

PFRE 11

Joint Armangements




Amcnciments ta PFRS 11; Accounting for Acqmsiﬂnns

of Interests in Joint Operatlons*

Nol Early Adopled

PFRE i2

Disclosurs of Interests in Other Entitdes

Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 272
{nvestment Entities

PFRS 13

Fair Value Meesurement.

Amengment to PFRS 13; Bhort-tarm Receivabies and
Payables

Amendment to PFRS 13: Portfolio Exception

S BE N RS BN S

PFRS 14

1Begulatory Deferral Agpoounts*

Not Early Adopted

Phlhppxna At

connting Stendards

1pasy
{Revised)

Preapntation of Finareial Statements

Amendment to PAS 1: Capital Disclosures

Antendrnents to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Pultable Financial
Tnstruments and Obligations Arising on Liguidation

Amendments to PAS 1: Presentstlon of Hems of Other
Contprehensive Income

Amendments to PAS 1: Clarffication of the
Requlremynts for Comparative Information

Amendments to PAS 1: Disclosurs lnitletive*

Mot Barly Adopted

PASZ

Inventorias

<,

PAS 7

Statement of Cash Flows

<,

PABE

Accounting Policies, Changes mAcnﬂunnng Estxmaws
and Brrars

PAS IO

Bvents after the Reporting Perlod

PAE 11

Construction Contracts

PAS 12

Inegme Taxes

Amendment to PAS 12 - Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets

SIS SISE S

PAS 16

Property, Plant and Equipment

~

Amendments to PAE 15 Clsssifieation of semcmg
equipment

<.

Amendmen! to PAS 16 and PAS 38: Revaluation
*ethod - Proporiionate Restatement of Accummulated
Deprecistion/Amortization

| Ampendments to PAS 16 and PAS 38: Clarification of

Asceptable Methods of Depreciation end Amortization®

Not Early Adopied

Amendments to PAS 16 snd BAS 41: Beerer Plants®

Not Barly Adopted

PAG T

Leases

Q\




and Financia! Liabikities

TINANG : _
o ‘1'5!: Ik rrﬁ‘ i
ecefmbicn i w»“?L gﬁ,-.,.

Revenue

Employae Benefils

Amentlments to PAS 19: Avtwarial Clains and Losses,

Group Plans and Disctosures
PAS 19 Employee Benefils
(Amended) ety to PAS 19 Defined Benofit Plany!

Employee Contribution

Amendments 1o PAS T5; Regional Market Tssug’ ' .

Regarding Discount Bate* Not Barly Adopted
PAR 20 Accounting for Guvernment Grants and Disclosurs of v Y,

Government Asgistance
PAS 21 The Effecis of Changes [n Foraign Exchangs Rates v v

Ametdment; Net Investment in 2 Foreign Cperation v o
PAS 23 Borrowing Casts v J
{Revised)
PAS 24 Related Perty Disclosures '
(Revised) Amendments to PAS 24 Ksy Management Personnal g
BAS 26 Aceounting snd Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plens v J
FAS 2T { Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements vy o
PAB 27 Separate Financlal Sisiements " %
(Amended) | RS 10, PFRS 12 and PAE 27 , P

Investmen! Entittes

Amendments to PAE 27: Equity Method in Separate ‘

Financial Statements® Not Herly Adopicd
PAR 28 Investients in Assosiates S v
PAS 28 Investmerts in Associales and Joint Ventures v v
(Amended) [0 S orts to PERS 10 and PAS 26; Sale or

Contribution of Assets between an invesior and its Mot Early Adapted

Assuciate or foiot Venture®

Amendrients to PFRS 10 and PAS 28: Appiylng the ‘

Consolidation Exeeption* Not Early Adopted
PAS 29 | Financial Reporting it Hyperinflationary Economiss Ng v
PAS 31 interests in Joint Ventares v v
PAS 32 Financial Instramants: Fresentation v

Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Putiabls Finsucial y v

Instruments and Obli gations Arising on Liguidation

Amendment to PAS 32: Classificaiton of Rights issues v v

Amendrnents to PAS 32: Offsetiing Financial Asgeis 7 y




Amendments 1o PAS 32: Tax cffccc af dmmbunon i
holders of equity instiments

Earnings per-Share

Interim Financial Reporting

Amendments o PAS 34: Interim financial reporting and
segment information for total asseis and labilitiss

Amencments 1o PAS 34: Disolosure:of Tnformation
‘Elsewhere in the Intesim Finanelal Report™

Mol Eerly Adopied

PAS 36

Impairment of Assels

Amendments to PAS 36; Recoverable Amount
Piscleguras for Non-Financial Assets

PAS 37

Provisions, Contingent Lisbifities afld Contingent
Asgsels : -

PAR B

Intangible Assets

Armendments to PAS 16 and PAS 38: Revaluation
Methed - Proportionate Resiatement of Acennulated

Amortization

Amendments to FAS 16 and PAS 38: Clarificatlon of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amertization*

Not Barly Adopted

PAS 39

Fivanctal Instrumenis: Recagnition and Massurernent

Amendments to PAS 39; Transton and Injtlal
Reengnition of Finencial Assets und Financial
Linbilities

Amendmants to PAS 39: Cash Flow Hedgs Acsounting
uof Forecast Intragroup Trangaciions

Amendments to PAS 39; The Fair Vahug Ontion

Amendments to PAS 3% and PFRE 4: Fingncial
Chuarantee Contracts

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFR3 74 Reclassifieation
of Financial Assets

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclasslfication
of Financir] Assets - Effective Date and Transition

Amendments 1o Philfppine Interpretation JFRIC § and
PAR 39: Embedded Derfvatives

Amendment 1o PAS 39: Eligibls Hedged Items

Amendmants to PAS 35: Novation of Derfvetives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting

S S IS S

PAS 40

Investment Property

ol < |a] =




A 5 -i%hf,
Amemimants io PAS 40 Clﬂnfymg the :
interralationship batween FFRS 3 and PAS 40 when y; J
Clussifying Property as Investment Property or Owner-
Oceupted Property
PAS 41 Agrieulturs v "
Amendmants o PAS 16 and PAS 43: Bearer Planis* Not Early Adopted
Philippine Interpretations
FFRIC T Changes in Existing Decommtssioniang, Restoration and y J
Birpilar Liabilities
IFRIC 2 Members’ Share in Co-operative Entities and Similar J iy
Instrumenls ‘
IFRIC 4 Dietermining Whether an Arrengement Contains a [ease FV /
IFRIC S, Rights to Interests arfsing from Diecommissioning, Y Y
Restarntion end Bnvironmental Rebabiltiation Funds
IFRIC 6 Lizbilities arlsing frarm Partictpating n & Specific Y, Y,
Merket - Waste Elestrical and Elecironic Equipmant
IFRIC 7 Applying the Reswtsment Approach.ander PAS 29 vy g
Financial Reporting in Hyperinflatienasy Economies
IFRIC 8 Soopa of PFRS 2 Y v
{FRICD Reassessmen: of Embedded Derivatives v W
Amendments to Phillppine Inteipratation IFRIC 9 and J ' /-
PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives
[FRIC 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impalrment s v
IERIC i1 |PFRS 2- Group sod Treasury Share Transactions v v
IFRIC 11 Serviece Coneession Arrangements o v
TFRIC 13 Customer Loyelty Programimes " v
IFRIC 14 | The Limit on 2 Dofined Benefit Asset, Minimum E y
Funding Requirements and their Interaction
Amendmens 1o Phitippine Intsrpreations IFRIC- 14, . Y,
Prepayments of & Minimum Funding Requirerent
IFRIC 1S Apresments [or the Construction of Real Estate® Not Early Adopted
IFRIC 16 | Hedges ofa Net avestment In & Forgign Operation S o
IFRIC 17 | Distributions of Non-cash Assels. lo Owhers J Vi
IFRIC 18 |Transfers of Assals from Customers S Vv
IFRIC19 | Extinguishing Financial Liebilities with :.qulty J v
Instrumernts
IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs In the Production Phase of Burface y /
Mins
IFRIC 21 Lavies v




SIC-18 Government Asslstance - No Specific Relation to v
Uperating Activitles

81C-12 Consolidation - Special Purpose Entitles v
Amendiment to BIC - 12: Scope of BIC 12 J

S1¢-13 Jolntly Controlled Bntlties - Non-Manetary v
Contributions by Ventprers

8IC-15 Operating Leases - Incentives v

81C-28 fncame Taxes » Chenges in the T Status of an Entity ’
ar its Sharcholders ‘

8IC-27 Evatusting the Substance of Transactions Jnvalving the Y
Legal Form of a Lease .

BiC-2% Service Concession Arrangements; Disciosures N

BIC-31 Revenue - Berter Transactions lnvolving Advertistng v
Services

§IC-32 Tntengible Assats - Web Site Costs g

# Slandetls and :'mwpru:aﬁaés swhich wiff become effective subsequent 10 Derember 31, 2011,




GMA HOLDINGS, TNC. .

[I1. RECONCILIATION OF RETAINED BARNINGS
AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMEBER 31, 2015

Unepptopriated retained sarnings, heginning B539.814
Net income during the year cloged to retained earnings 635,183
Dividend declaration during the year {500,000)

Reteined earnings - gvaiiable for dividend déc’[ aration as at December 31, 2015

PG75,007




GMA HOLDINGS, INC,

IV. SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL RATIOE
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013

Depember 31
Financial Ratios ‘ Description 2015 2014
Current/liquidity ratio  -Current assets over current Habilities ' 0.58 0.57
Asset to equity ratio Tatal assets over total equity 83.06 41.78
Debt to equity ratio Total liabilities over total equity B1.08 45.76

Years ended December
20158 2014 2013
109% 309 (1319

1% 1% (1%}

Finaneinl Ratios Deseription -

Returm on equity  Net income over total squity

Return on asset  Net incoine over folkl assets _

EBITDA margin  Earnings before interest, tax and depreciation
and amaortization over total revenue 49%  37%

{11%)
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CERTIFICATION

THIS IS TO CERTIFY that in compliance with Article 9(B) of
the 1987 Philippine Constitution, none of the Directors,
Independent Directors and Officers of GMA Holdings, Inc. are
elected as public servants and or appointed in any government
agency, local or foreign, without authority of law.

APR 21 2018
Issued this day of 2016.
ROBERTO O. PAREL
Compliance Officer

GMA Holdings, Inc.



CERTIFICATION oF I:NDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

and with office address at Suite 703 Midland

I JAIME C. LAYA, Filipino, of legal age,
been duly sworn t0

Mansion Condominium A Arnaiz Avenue, Makati City, after having
in accordance with law, do hereby declare that:

1, = Taman Independent Director of GMA Holdings, Inc-3

Company/Organization Position " Period of |
] Service
Philippine Trust Company (Philtrust Bank) W_W W
n : President
GMA Network, Inc. and : Independent 2007-present
-GMA Holdings, Inc. Director :
Ayala Land, Inc. independent 2010-present
Ditector & .
Wanila Water Company, [ne. Tndependent 2014-present
H’"““"““___,_f—»———‘—'_’_“—“__r—p Director .
Philippine AXA Life Insusance Co., Ine. | Director 2005-present
Charter Ping An [nsuraice Corporation [ Independent 2016-
, : Director
Becuela Taller Foundation of the Philippines, Inc. | Chairman 2013-present
Don Norberto T Foundation, [ne, Chalrman ] 2005-present
Cofradfa de 12 Tnmaculade Concepeidn Trusiee 1979-present |
Heart Foundation of the Philippines, Inc. Trustee ca. 1985-present
C1R1 Foundation, Inc. Trusice 1998-present
TSt Paut Universily — Quezon Cit Trustee 2002-present
jg}}dacién Santjago, Ine. Trustee 2007 -present
Cultural Center of the Philippines Trustee 2003-present
Metropolitan Museurn of Manila Truslee ca. 2004-present
Yuchengeo Museum  Trusiee ca, 2007-present
Saeiety for Cultural Enrichment, Tne. Trustee 20(9-preserit
Ayala Toundation, Inc. ' ‘ Trustee _gg;_a_-}w_J
M@MH Director 2014-present
wa/ Trustee | 2014prosent
T
| Director .|

I - _d‘___m_.m—a'w»—ﬂ_._.__..——_‘,_..m__w
Various family corporations : Director ca. 1960-present |

—



3. 1 possess all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications to serve as an
Independent Director of GMA Holdings, Inc., 88 provided for in-Section 38 of the
Securities Regulation Code and its Implementing Rules and Regulations.

4, I shall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and responsibilities as
Independent Director under the Securities Regulation Code. ‘

5. [ shall inform the Corporate Secretary of GMA Holdings, Inc. of any changes in
the above~111entionedAinfonnation within five (5) days from its ocewrrence,

Done this 4™ day of April two thousand and sixteen at Makati City.

MAKATI CITY ' &
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN fo before pé;j ﬁ:) gmgf April, two thousand and
sixteen, at Makati City, affiant personallygg -ddvbefore me and exhibited to me his
Passport No. BECa123777 issued at Manila on January 7, 2015.

A’Fﬁ- : gﬁﬁ .Tﬁi.m
Doc. No. %  omRy PUBLCT ASRAY) CITY
Page No. _§& , , APOIMTMENT NO. #1332
Book No. L i DECEMDER 31, 2015
Y r ‘ , o oF ATV, R, 43543
Seties 0f 2014 MCLE COMPLIATICE RO 00T 2/4-20-2013

IBP CHLR Ho w7 G LIFETIRE BAETARER JAN 26,2007
#TR N 6423506 1A p,A0E BAMCATLTITY
ERECUTIVE gL, CEHTER
pAAKAT] AVE., COR., JURITER



by
;

1, ARTEMIO V. PANGANIBAN, Filipino, of

Dasmarifias Village, Makati City, after having been duly sworn to in ac

CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT. D

IRECTORS

legal age, and with office address at 1203 Acacia Streef,

L am an independent director of GMA HOLDINGS, INC

2.1 am affiliated with the following listed companies or orgapizations:

cordance with law, do-hereby declare that:

Position/Relationship

Period of Service

Company/Organization

First Philippine Holdings Corporation

Independent Ditestor

2007 - presentr__i

Independent Director

2007 - present

Metro Pacific Investments Corporation

GMA Netwark, Inc.

Independent Divector

2007 - present

~ 2008 - present

Manila Electric Company

Robinsons Land Corporation

Independent Director

2008 - present

Asian Terminals, Inc.
Petran: Corporation

Tndependent Director

2010 - present

~ Ipdependent Lrirector

2010 - present

Tndependent Director

20173 -~ present

Philippine Long, Distance Teleph'oné Co.
2012 - present

a Tollibee Foods Corporation ~ Directer
Metropolitan Bank and Trust Company Senior Adviser 2007 - present
Adviser 2014 - present

Dauble Dragon Properties Corporation
Bank of the Philippine Islands Member, Advisory Council Apr. 15,2016 - present |

For my full bio-data, fog on to my personal website: cjpanganibar.coml ‘

ne of the disqualifications to serve as ag Independent Director of
for 1n Section 38 of the Securifies Regulation Code and ifs

3.1 possess all the qualifications and no
GMA HOLDINGS, INC., a3 provided
Implementing Rules and Regulations.

4.1 shall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and responsibilities as indegendent director under

ihe Securities Regulation Code.

5.1 shall inform the cotpotate secretary of GMA HOLDINGS,
information within five (3) days froni its accuTence.

Done, ﬁ@jﬁjc@y c%ﬂl%l 2016, at Makati City.

INC., of any change in the abovementioned

Wf/%
ARTEMIO V. PANGANIBAN
o Affiant

MAKATI CITY . .
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN fo before R 19 d%%% Aprit 2016 at Makati City, affiant
personally appeared before me and exhibited to me his Diplomatic Passport Number DE0013400 issued on

December 15, 2015 by the DFA, Manila a_nd witl expite on December 14, 2020,

Doc. No, Jf&;};,

Page No. _ﬁ_@g’,’ :
Book No. :;{- - B :
Heries of 2016.3&{ )%//

ATTY, ViggG . RATALLA
WOTARY PUBITE FOI MIARATE T
APPOINMENT B0 33
LTI B EiARER 3 b

e QR $e0 T OETE
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